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NATURE OF THE INTEGRATED REPORT

NATURE OF THE 
INTEGRATED REPORT

FRAMEWORK

CONTACT INFORMATION

Brisa Concessão Rodoviária, S.A. (BCR) provides, 
for the first time, the Interim Integrated Report 
for 2021, including financial and non-financial data. 
The Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) 
perspective is evidenced in its contents, showing 
the creation of economic, social and environmental 
value through the inclusion of Environmental, 
Social and Corporate Governance aspects in 
the company’s business model. In line with the 
best reporting practice for financial and non-
financial data, BCR provides information on how 
its strategy combines long-term profitability with 
social progress and environmental preservation, 
with a view to creating sustainable value. The 
integrated report is a responsible reporting 
solution with respect to all stakeholders. The 
Report also includes an analysis of the risks 
associated with the company’s operations, as 
well as an explanation of BCR’s approach to 
financial, human, intellectual, social and natural 
capital, in compliance with the International 
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) guidelines. 
The corporate culture of BCR – based on its 
corporate values of Ethics, Excellence, Innovation 
and People – determines the use of an alternative 
terminology where financial, human, intellectual, 
social and natural capital are always referred to 
as “Business”, “People”, “Innovation”, “Community” 
and “Environment”, respectively. The information 
contained in this report includes Corporate 
Governance issues, Financial Statements and 
performance indicators pertaining to material 

Further information and clarifications may be 
requested through IR@brisa.pt or contato@brisa.pt.

non-financial items. The Financial Statements 
included herein were produced in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), as adopted in the European Union, and 
have not been the object of an Audit Report. 
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STATEMENT 
OF COMPLIANCE

Pursuant to article 264, point 1, 
paragraph c), of the Portuguese 
Securities Market Code, and 
in compliance with legal and 
statutory provisions, the Board 
of Directors hereby submits to 
the shareholders the interim 
financial statements and 
integrated report pertaining to 
the 1st half of 2021,  

in the firm belief that, to the best of its knowledge, 
the information contained therein was produced 
in accordance with the applicable accounting 
standards and offers a true and fair view of the 
company’s assets and liabilities and financial 
situation, and that the integrated report includes 
a truthful account of the required information.

STATEMENT
OF COMPLIANCE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
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BCR owns the largest 
infrastructure concession in 
Portugal, which covers the 
country’s main road axis. 

Brisa Concessão Rodoviária (BCR) was created 
to operate the Brisa Concession, following the 
corporate reorganisation of the Brisa Group in 
2010. Its corporate object is the construction, 
maintenance and operation of motorways 
and the respective service areas, under 
a concession agreement, as well as the planning 
and development of social infrastructure. 

The history of the Brisa Concession Agreement 
began in 1972 with the foundation of Brisa 
Auto-Estradas de Portugal (BAE). The activities 
undertaken resulted in the construction of 
the country’s largest road network, which 
extends across the entire territory, from north 
to south and east to west, including two major 
axes leading to Spain. The Brisa Group adopts 
a long-term strategy, aimed at creating value for 
all stakeholders.

Characteristics 
of the Concession Contract
The network concessioned to BCR consists of 
12 motorways in Portugal, almost entirely built. 

BCR currently operates 11 motorways, whose 
length totals 1 100 km, including 1 014 km of 
tolled sub-streches. According to the Concession 
Agreement, the total length of the concession 
network was set as 1 124 km. The network will 
be fully completed following the construction of 
the access motorway leading to the New Lisbon 
Airport, whose final extension will depend on its 
future location. The network covers the entire 
country, encompassing all major motorways, as 
well as relevant radial and circular roads serving 
the Metropolitan Areas of Lisbon and Oporto. 
According to the Concession Contract signed with 
the Portuguese Government, the concession will 
end on 31 December 2035. 

The updating of toll charges is automatic and is 
indexed to inflation (Portuguese Consumer Price 
Index, excluding housing, relative to the month 
of October). Part of the revenues resulting from 
the aforementioned increase (8.5%) reverts in 
favour of the State.

 ABOUT 
BCR1.1
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Motorways

A2 - South Motorway

A6 - Marateca - Elvas Motorway

A13 - Almeirim - Marateca Motorway

A4 - Porto - Amarante Motorway

A10 - Bucelas - Carregado Motorway – IC3

A1 - North Motorway

A3 - Porto - Valença Motorway

A9 - Lisbon Region Outer Ring Road

A14 - Figueira da Foz - Coimbra (North) Motorway

A5 - Costa do Estoril Motorway

A12 - Setúbal - Montijo Motorway

Toll-free

17.4

8.1

9.6

19.1

0.0

11.5

0.0

4.3

3.0

0.0

13.1

86.1 1 100.2

Total

296.5

25.0

234.8

157.9

39.8

112.8

34.4

29.1

51.3

78.7

39.9

793.3

2x2
lanes

156.2

2.3

202.8

157.9

7.4

91.6

0.0

5.2

51.3

78.7

39.9

15.7

2x4
lanes

7.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

8.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Total

Length in km

Tolled

279.1

16.9

225.2

138.8

39.8

101.3

34.4

24.8

48.3

78.7

26.8

1 014.1

2x1
lanes

1.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

5.6

2x3
lanes

131.7

22.7

32.0

0.0

32.4

12.8

34.4

19.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

285.6

Contractual and financial structure
Under the aforesaid corporate reorganisation, 
completed in 2010, BCR took the form of a Special 
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) and adopted a contractual 
and financial structure based on the Common 
Terms Agreement (CTA). This structure is common 
to all senior creditors and offers effective ring-
fencing of BCR. The CTA limits debtholders’ 
exposure to BCR, in addition to offering solid 
protection to all financial creditors, through 
a series of protective instruments (security 
package) and obligations (covenants). These 
include the following, among others: 
  Establishment of financial ratios and limitation 

of distributions to shareholders, based on the 
achievement of certain levels of those ratios 
and the maintenance of the investment grade 
rating by two rating agencies.

  Pledge of the shares held by BCR SGPS, S.A. in 
BCR’s share capital and BCR’s bank accounts in 
favour of the debtholders.

  Constitution of reserve accounts for debt service 
and investment.

  Hedging of financial risks, which defines the 
main rules and guidelines related both to the 
management of exposures and setting up 
hedge instruments.

  A minimum of three independent directors 
with specific powers and duties regarding the 
approval of distributions.

  Prohibition of the development of new business 
ventures in addition to those arising from the 
Concession Contract.

Service subcontracting model
As established in its contractual structure, BCR 
maintains 5 long-term service contracts with Brisa 
Group companies. 

The respective prices and service levels are 
established under fully competitive conditions. 
Subcontracted services include the Operation 
& Maintenance of the motorway network, the 
Management of Electronic Collection Systems, 
Management Consulting Services, Shared 
Logistical Support and Administration Services, 
and Engineering and Technical Services.
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Business Innovation EnvironmentPeople Community

€231.9m
Operating 

Income

frc
BCR has family 

responsible company 
certification

27
Electric charging 
points at Service 

Areas2

5
C-ITS Projects with 
European Funding1

44 GJ/km 
operated 

Energy 
Intensity

62% 
Waste 

Recovered

1 823
Employees and other 

direct and indirect 
workers

6.4 minutes
Average response 
time to an event 

across the managed 
network3

€1.14m
Financing in favour of 
innovation received in 

the last 2 years

12 tCO2eq/€m
GHG emissions 

intensity 
(Scopes 1 and 2)

€167.1m
EBITDA

BCR Rating
‘Baa2’ Moody’s

‘A-‘ Fitch

38% Women
Employees and other 

direct and indirect 
workers

4.4 million 
km patrolled by road 
assistance vehicles 
during the 1st half of 

2021

3
Collaboration 

programmes with 
research groups from 

the Universities of Aveiro, 
Coimbra and Lisbon

23 m3/km 
operated

Quantity of water 
captured

€1 712m
Net Debt

1 124km
Under concession 

to BCR

Values as of 30 June 2021 
1 C-ITS Cooperative Transport Systems
2 Charging points available on 28 July 2021
3  Average time between the arrival of the client’s request at the OCC and the arrival of the road assistance vehicle at the incident’s location

KEY 
INDICATORS1.2
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BCR’s shareholder structure
BCR’s shares are fully owned by Brisa Concessão Rodoviária, SGPS, S.A. (BCR SGPS), whose share capital 
is 70% owned by Brisa Auto-Estradas de Portugal, S.A. (BAE) and the remaining 30% are held by Global 
Roads Investimentos, SGPS, Lda (Global Roads).

Brisa Concessão 
Rodoviária, 
SGPS, S.A.

Brisa Concessão 
Rodoviária, S.A.

Brisa 
Auto-Estradas 

de Portugal, S.A.

70% 30%

100%

Global Roads 
Investimentos, 

SGPS, Lda
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February
  Disclosure of 2020 Annual Results
  Completion of Soil Stabilisation operations at km 13+800 (N/S) of the Almada-Fogueteiro (A2) Sub-

stretch, and Soil Stabilisation at km 1+850, of the Estádio Nacional (A5/A9)-Queluz (A9) Sub-stretch
  Start of works in the convenience store and service area of the Oeiras Service Area (A5)

March 
  Completion of Slope Stabilisation at km 5+950 (E/W), Branch A and A+B, and Jamor, at 

the Estádio Nacional Junction, in the Linda-a-Velha-Estádio Nacional (A5) Sub-stretch; 
Carenque Tunnel Slope Restoration, in the Queluz-Radial da Pontinha (A9) Sub-stretch; and 
Reinforcement of PHs (Hydraulic passage) 30.3, 30.4 and 30.5, in the Pontinha-Radial de 
Odivelas (A9) Sub-stretch

  Disclosure of the 1st Integrated Report for 2020
  Signing of a committed credit line in the amount of €50m and maturity of 3 years
  Signing of a Commercial Paper Programme in the amount of €150m and maturity of 

3 years

HIGHLIGHTS 
AND EVENTS OF THE SEMESTER1.3

April 
  “Bond April 2021” repayment (€300m, coupon of 3.875%) 
  Election of the Governing Bodies for 2021-2023 at the General Meeting 
  Distribution of €124.2m to shareholder BCR SGPS, S.A.
  Completion of Slope Stabilisation at km 127+310 (N/S) of the Fátima-Leiria (A1) Sub-stretch and 

Slope Stabilisation Works at km 13+600 (W/E) of the Ermesinde-Valongo (A4) Sub-stretch
  Opening of the first Via Verde Electric charging point at the Almodôvar Service Area (A2), as 

a result of a partnership between Brisa, Cepsa and Ionity
  Launch of the Via Verde Electric charging service at the Santarém Service Area (N/S) (A1), as 

a result of a partnership between Brisa, EDP and BP
  Signing of a Commercial Paper Programme in the amount of €100m and maturity of 

3 years
  Signing of a Commercial Paper Programme in the amount of €50m and maturity of 3 years
  BCR’s rating by Moody’s maintained at “Baa2”, with “Stable” outlook
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May 
  Signing of a committed credit line in the amount of €50m with maturity of 3 years

June
  Launch of the Via Verde Electric charging service at the Barcelos Service Area (N/S) (A3), as 

a result of a partnership between Brisa, Cepsa and Ionity
  Launch of the Via Verde Electric charging service at the Estremoz Service Area (A6), as a result 

of a partnership between Brisa, Cepsa and Ionity
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Values and Mission 

A valuable business partner, 
BCR seeks to ensure safe and 
efficient mobility in Portugal 
through the excellent 
management and operation 
of the motorway network 
that covers the country’s 
main road axis, delivering top 
performance and advanced 
road and mobility services. 

BCR’s culture is based on the values of Ethics, 
Excellence, Innovation and People. The company is 
strongly dedicated to the efficient management of 
road infrastructures. Additionally, BCR promotes 
safe mobility, as well as inter-urban, inter-regional 
and international accessibility, with important 
economic and social benefits for the activities and 
community it serves and their business prospects 
in its different segments.

Values on which BCR’s 
culture is based
Ethics | Excellence | Innovation | People

BCR’S Mission
Provide efficient and safe mobility for people

 STRATEGIC 
FRAMEWORK1.4
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Sustainable Development Goals
Sustainable Development Goals (SDG) and decarbonisation are the main priorities of BCR’s sustainability 
strategy. BCR has identified eight major SDGs, in terms of benefits, impact and the growth of business 
segments, based on an internal analysis and assessment, stakeholder mapping and a materiality 
analysis carried out by Brisa Auto-Estradas de Portugal, S.A. in 2018.

Priority SDGs of Brisa Concessão Rodoviária

Goal 3 
Good Health and Wellbeing
In addition to ensuring the health and wellbeing of its 
employees and those of its direct suppliers, who are 
responsible for motorway operation and all maintenance 
activities included in the concession contract, BCR renewed 
its commitment to goal 3.6 – halving the number of deaths 
and serious injuries from road traffic accidents by 2030, 
compared with 2020. In order to reach this specific goal, 
BCR will keep investing at a similar rhythm as seen in the 
last decade, such as to ensure network preservation and 
maintenance, as well as implement stringent assistance 
and traffic management standards.

Goal 17
Partnerships for the Goals 

BCR has a history of collaborative work and partnerships 
with public and private entities in a wide variety of areas, 
ranging from road safety, protection of biodiversity and 
advocacy of sustainable development.

Goal 7 
Affordable and Clean Energy
In the 1st half of 2021, BCR continued 
to implement its Energy Consumption 
Rationalisation Plan, having started to 
replace motorway lighting with LED 
lights. This is an important step in 
BCR’s Energy Transition plan.

Goal 8
Decent Work and Economic Growth
A sound work-life balance is a priority to BCR, which seeks 
to support its employees and those of its service providers. 
Additionally, BCR focuses on ensuring occupational health, 
safety and hygiene, namely with a view to reducing workplace 
accidents.

Goal 9
Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure
Every year, BCR invests in the maintenance and improvement 
of the motorways included in its concessions, ensuring the 
usefulness of these infrastructures for improving access and 
fostering the development of the communities it serves. BCR 
invests continuously in the innovation of its infrastructures, 
equipment and services, as well as in information and connectivity 
systems. In 2021, the company started implementing the fast 
and ultra-fast electric charging network at Service Areas, as a 
driver of decarbonisation in motorways.

Goal 12
Responsible Consumption and Production

Together with its operational and maintenance service providers, 
BCR is currently developing solutions for the implementation of 
a circular economy in its processes, while upholding its efficient 
resource management policy.

Goal 13
Climate Action
BCR has included measures aimed at 
minimising the impact of climate change in 
its strategy and planning, namely by seeking 
to reduce its carbon footprint and focusing on 
decarbonisation in road transport. Analysis of 
climate risks (physical and transition) will be 
started in the second half of the current year.

Goal 15
Protecting Life on Land 
BCR keeps its ongoing commitment to 
preserving biodiversity, by ensuring 
compliance with applicable guidelines, 
engaging in voluntary action and seeking 
to mitigate and offset the impact of its 
infrastructure management operations, 
namely on habitat fragmentation.
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Materiality Analysis
The materiality of Brisa Concessão Rodoviária (BCR) is based on the analysis conducted in 2018 by 
the Brisa Group, with the support of an independent entity, based on the methods established in 
the guidelines and directives of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and the International Integrated 
Reporting Council (IIRC) framework. This analysis is justified by the relevance of BCR’s impact in the 
context of the Group’s activities.

The analysis resulted in the identification of the economic, social, environmental and Corporate Governance 
issues that influence the Group’s activities, taking in consideration the company’s top management and 
stakeholders’ points of view, such as to ensure the integration of internal and external perspectives.

The Brisa Group strategic stakeholder structure intersects with BCR’s materiality, enabling the identification 
of major aspects that impact the performance of both.

Stakeholder mapping and a specific materiality analysis will be conducted in the second half of 2021, 
such as to improve the quality and reliability of BCR’s integrated reporting.

Aspects of high and medium materiality
In 2021, the material aspects underlying the definition of strategic areas for sustainability continue to 
be the following:

ECONOMIC
PERFORMANCE

SERVICE
EFFICIENCY

BUSINESS STRATEGY
ON SUSTAINABILITY

CLIENT
SATISFACTION

ENVIRONMENTAL
STRATEGY AND ACTION

TRANSPARENCY IN
MANAGEMENT 
PRACTICES

INNOVATION IN
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

RELATIONS WITH
STAKEHOLDERS

PROFESSIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES

RISK
MANAGEMENT
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Dialogue with stakeholders

Description of stakeholders
BCR values constructive relationships and open 
dialogue with its stakeholders, boasting over 
40 years of experience in the consultation and 
identification of critical topics pertaining to the 
people and entities served or influenced by the 
company, or on which the latter relies.

At BCR, the most relevant stakeholders are 
identified based on the respective impact on the 
company and vice-versa.

Identif ication of individual stakeholder 
expectations and responses are included in 
the materiality analysis, in compliance with the 
AA1000APS Standard.

BCR is an active member of the APCAP 
– Portuguese Association of Motorway 
Concession Companies, a sector representative 
that engages in research and development, in 
addition to producing manuals and indicators, with 
the support of permanent committees specialised 
in traffic and tolls, environment and road safety, 
and smart transport technologies and systems. 

Through the APCAP, BCR also participates in 
the activities of the ASECAP – Association 
Européenne des Sociétés Concessionnaires 
d’Autoroutes et d´Ouvrages à Péage, which 
represents concessionaires from 21 European 
countries, responsible for managing a total of 87 
thousand kilometres of motorways.

Reference organisations
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Material SubjectsResponse

PORTUGUESE 
STATE

Assessment
Active management and follow-up of
contractual obligations
Permanent contact

Expectations
Compliance with the Concession 
Contract

Negotiation process, with impact on 
the Concession Contract
Contract management
Creation of events/activities/queries
Drafting of reports

Compliance with the Concession 
Contract
Ethics and Transparency

BCR stakeholders

Material SubjectsResponse

REGULATOR*

Assessment

Active management of the 
Concession Contract
Formal and informal meetings

Expectations

Compliance with the Concession 
Contract

Creation of events/activities/queries
Strict compliance with the
Concession Contract
Definition of criteria to improve 
services provided
Optimisation of technical solutions
Development of specific studies

Compliance with the Concession 
Contract

* Transport and 
Mobility Institute 
- Instituto da 
Mobilidade e dos 
Transportes (IMT, I.P.)
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EMPLOYEES
Material SubjectsResponse

Assessment

Employee website and Quality
and Environment website
Irregularities Disclosure Channel
and Ethical Ombudsman
Regular meetings of the Workers’
Commission
Follow-up of management systems
Training Assessment Questionnaire
Internal Quality Audit Satisfaction
Questionnaires
Active Improvement Opportunities 
System

Expectations

Job stability
Prospects of career progress
Working conditions
Balance between professional,
family and personal life
Personal data protection

People management processes, e.g.,
   - Performance management;
   - Careers
   - Compensation
   - Training
   - Communication channels

(See channels mentioned in column 
“Assessment”)

Compliance with the GDPR
Privacy Policies

Talent Management
Health and Safety
Corporate Culture
Professional development
and labour practices
Balance between work, and family 
and personal life
Transparency in Management 
Practices
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Material SubjectsResponse

Assessment

Proposals of the labour unions
and negotiating process
Regular meetings (monthly or 
quarterly)
Parity commissions (when 
necessary)
Management of Works Contract

Expectations

Compliance with the contracts 
and protocols in force
Creation of opportunities
and active collaboration in the
initiatives developed

Analysis of the proposals, 
suggestions and complaints
Collective labour agreement (ACT) 
Negotiation
Net based innovation model
Development of joint projects
with a long-term horizon
Partnership protocols with 
universities and research institutions
Support to the production of 
scientific literature

Innovation ecosystem
Certification
Ethics and Transparency

SOCIAL
PARTNERS

Material SubjectsResponse

Assessment

BCR website, email and telephone

Expectations

Transparent and rigorous information
Personal data protection

Regular information by email, telephone, 
conference calls
Results Presentation Documents 
In 2020, the 1st Integrated Report is 
presented 
BCR website, email, telephone
Meetings with investors (Roadshows)
Compliance with the GDPR
Privacy Policies

Economic performance
Ethics and Transparency
Eco-efficiency and operational 
management
Client satisfactionINVESTORS

(SHAREHOLDER
AND 

DEBTHOLDERS)
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Material SubjectsResponse

Assessment

Customer satisfaction assessment 
study
Follow-up of the assessment of 
customer satisfaction with the road 
assistance service, the customer 
support line, and assistance and 
services at stores
Mystery client in widening works, 
service areas and stores
Assessment of food quality and 
hygiene in service areas
Client surveys
Available support channels: websites, 
hotline, stores
Complaints management system

Expectations

Comfort, safety and fluidity of traffic
Quality of the infrastructure and
service provided, perception of
value provided
Accessible and transparent contact
Personal data protection

At operational level:
New equipment, systems and 
procedures of road safety
Management of road pavement and 
engineering structures
Road patrolling and assistance services

In terms of the information provided:
Complaints management system
Multichannel information on traffic in 
motorways (Via Verde service channels, 
website, app, radio, press releases, 
leaflets distributed, etc.)
Network of stores, service areas and 
information kiosks
Assistance and information support 
line, hotline for Via Verde clients
Assistance and information to the 
hearing-impaired community via SMS
Internet websites
Via Verde ecosystem
Via Verde app
Compliance with the GDPR
Privacy Policies

Economic performance
Ethics and Transparency
Eco-efficiency and Operational 
Management
Client satisfactionCLIENTS
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LOCAL
COMMUNITIES

Material SubjectsResponse

Assessment

Public consultation process, for 
environmental impact assessments
Dedicated channel for communication 
with the media

Expectations

Contribution towards local
development
Mobility and accessibility solutions
Personal data protection

Contribution towards local 
development
Mobility and accessibility solutions
Drafting of reports
Compliance with the GDPR
Privacy Policies

Stakeholder engagement
Positive external perceptions
Employees’ contribution
Transparency in management 
practices
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Material SubjectsResponse

Assessment

Implementation of annual surveys
Journalists perception study
Quarterly monitoring and 
assessment of news
Monitoring of the impact of specific 
events
Annual reputation survey

Expectations

Transparency and quality of the
information

Transparency and quality of the 
information

Ethics and Transparency
Eco-efficiency and operational 
management
Client Service

PUBLIC
OPINION
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INFRASTRUCTURE OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES PARTNERS

CLIENT SERVICE
PARTNERS

Business Model

BCR Approach: Infrastructure to Sustainable Mobility
BCR’s business model focuses on the efficient management and maintenance of the motorway network 
of its concession ensuring the delivery of innovative mobility services, high safety and comfort levels 
and consistent, the delivery to its clients and stakeholders of innovativie, together with its business 
partners.

MOTORWAY NETWORK 
MANAGEMENT

Largest and most important motorway network 
in Portugal, showing consistent and sustainable 
growth

Optimisation of the wellbeing of all stakeholders 
involved

Prudent, disciplined and efficient operational and
financial management

Focus on the client, through the development of 
innovative and efficient mobility and accessibility 
solutions

Network of service areas designed to ensure the
client’s comfort and convenience

Comprehensiveness of services to cover new client 
needs (e.g., EV-charging network)

National network of Operation and Maintenance 
teams optimised to ensure the road safety of the 
clients

Optimisation and modernisation of the infrastructure 
based on advanced asset management tools

Monitoring, patrolling and permanent assistance 
to the network 



BCR
22

Strategic Pillars
BCR is a leading, client-oriented road infrastructure management company that focuses on efficiency 
and sustainability. 

Maximize client 
satisfaction
by offering the user 
of BCR’s network an 
integrated
experience

Service offer that is
comprehensive, 
consistent and
adapted to the new 
mobility
needs

Focus on: 
Diversification and
sophistication of the 
offer to the client

E.g. New Colibri stores

Maximise value 
creation through 
operational efficiency
and disciplined 
management of
capital expenditure

Adopt the most 
advanced and efficient 
technologies to
operations and 
decision- making,
ensuring quality and 
hight performance
infrastructure

Focus on: 
Infrastructure 
digitalisation and
asset management

E.g. Asset 
Management System

USER-CENTRIC 
MANAGEMENT

INFRASTRUCTURE

OPTIMISATION OF 
THE FINANCIAL 

COMPONENT

MODERNISATION 
AND OPTIMISATION 

OF THE ASSETS

Efficient, prudent and 
disciplined financial 
management

Efficient management 
of refinancing and 
investment needs

Focus on: 
Balanced and 
sustainable
funding and debt profile

E.g. Contractual and 
financial structure 
of BCR (Common 
Terms Agreement) 

PRIORITISATION OF THE SUSTAINABILITY AGENDA

Continue to implement an integrated strategy to improve social and environmental 
responsibility standards

Strengthen the relationship with all stakeholders in a structured and systematic way 
(whether internal or external)

Focus on: 
Decarbonisation and energy transition of the operation
E.g. Electric charging network throughout BCR’s network
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Value Creation
Based on its business model, BCR aims to create value for all its stakeholders, on financial, human, 
technological, social and environmental levels. 

Strategic drive focused on the efficient management of road 
infrastructure, ensuring a safe, comfortable and fast journey, focused 
on the client and business sustainability.

Prudent, efficient and sustainable financial management.

Relations with the community directed to road safety, quality of 
the service provided and social responsibility are determinant for 
its social development project.

Strategy and action on environmental matters aligned with the 
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals and with the main 
guidelines on environmental policy. Decarbonisation through the 
energy transition of the operations, mobility, the mitigation of traffic 
impacts and climate change. 

Focus on enhancement of the value of people, employment and 
the family as pillars of action. Family Responsible Company, in the 
context of the Brisa Group that received the efr certification by the
MásFamilia Foundation.

Employees who feel fulfilled and identified with the company’s values, 
as a critical factor of value creation.

Focus gradually extended to the supplier chain.

PEOPLE

BUSINESS

COMMUNITY

Systematic and structured approach to the enrichment of its 
intellectual capital, with innovation being one of the fundamental 
pillars of its value creation. 

Promotion of diverse initiatives, seeking integrated mobility solutions.INNOVATION

ENVIRONMENT
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 RISK 
MANAGEMENT1.5

Brisa Concessão Rodoviária (BCR) has implemented an Enterprise 
Risk Management (ERM) process in order to identify, assess and 
manage the risks to which it is exposed, in a systematic manner.  

BCR’s Board of Directors is responsible for approving and monitoring the ERM Policy, such as to ensure 
the adoption of an effective risk culture at the organisation. The Risk Management methodology has been 
progressively updated. In this sense, the concepts of “willingness” to accept risk and “resilience” have been 
introduced in recent years, in line with best practice. Risk Management aims to ensure sustained business 
growth, such as to safeguard the value of the Concession, by using best practices and drawing on in-house 
knowledge, which contributes to the achievement of strategic goals. Risk Management aspects are included 
in business management and the decision-making processes undertaken by company management and 
other organisational structures. As a Corporate Governance pillar, Risk Management is an integral part of the 
company’s culture and management processes. In this sense, employees are responsible for mitigating risk 
factors, minimising their impact and probability, and detecting opportunities for improvement and/or return, 
whenever possible. Integrated risk management is conducted as described below, based on internationally 
recognised methodologies, such as COSO (Committee of Sponsorship Organisations of the Treadway Commission) 
and ISO (International Organisation for Standardisation) 31000 - Risk Management:

• Strategic goals
• Planning & Budget

• Action Plans

CHARACTERISATION:
• Causes

• Consequences
• Controls

ASSESSMENT:

• Underlying Risk
• Residual Risk

RISKS
IDENTIFICATION

REPORT

RISK
APPROACH:
• Accept
• Avoid
• Reduce

• Share

MONITORING
 

CO
M

M
UN

N

CATIO
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In addition to ensuring convergence between 
Risk Management and strategic planning, the 
implemented process allows for the regular 
updating of major risk identif ication and 
assessment procedures, in a systematic manner. 
Moreover, this approach allows the identification of 
the respective mitigation measures, which, in the 
current context of new business trends - efficient 
infrastructure management for the development 
of new sustainable mobility solutions -, are 
particularly important in supporting management, 
from a sustained development perspective. The 
risks to which BCR is exposed are classified into 
four categories:

Risks associated with the definition and 
implementation of the company’s strategy and 
response capacity, in due time, to internal and 
external events that could significantly influence 
competitiveness.

Risks associated with operational management, 
resulting from activities likely to have significant 
impact on ongoing business.

Risks associated with compliance with the law, 
regulations, internal procedures or contracts.

STRATEGIC

OPERATIONAL

COMPLIANCE

Risks associated with the company’s financial 
management, namely liquidity, interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates and credit risk of the main 
counterparties in possible financial transactions.

FINANCIAL
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Some of the main risks identified and assessed in 2020 and during the 1st half of 2021 are presented, 
by category. 

Traffic

Pandemic

Technological evolution

Reputational

Climate Change

Relations 
with stakeholders

Infrastructure Conservation 
and Maintenance

Interest rate 
(funding cost)

Competition

Regulatory

Security of Systems and 
Information

Counterparty

Refinancing

Operational FinancialComplianceStrategic

Taxes
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Examples of response to several risks are presented below:

Strategic Risks

Risks Treatment/Response to risk

Technological 
evolution

Pandemic

Climate 
Change

Traffic

Fleet Electrification, Energy Transition
of the Operations, Rationalisation of
the Management of Water Resources,
Waste Management and Circular
Economy

Business Intelligence & Advocacy
(participation in forums of the speciality
- WBCSD, BCSD, ASECAP)

Traffic budget based on macroeconomic
studies from external entities

Performance of sensitivity scenarios/
analysis

Road network intervention/
maintenance planning

Average Daily Traffic periodic
monitoring

Alignment with market’s best practices

Partnership policy with universities and
companies

Investment in new solutions

Permanent interaction with R&D
funding bodies (Portuguese and EC)

Preparation and implementation of
contingency plans

Collaboration with the authorities and
concession grantor in the management
of the pandemic and measures taken

Enhanced flexibility of telework,
reflected in team/resource management

Compliance Risks

Risks Treatment/Response to risk

Tax

Regulatory

Tax advice and use of specialised 
tax consultants

Continuous training in tax 
regulations and existence of 
a specialised inhouse structure 

Evolution of national and international
regulatory trends

Legal advice and support in the 
form of studies, opinions and
information 

Operational Risks

Risks Treatment/Response to risk

Security of 
Systems and
Information

Infrastructure 
Conservation
and Maintenance

Policy on Information Security

Monitoring of traffic, behaviour 
and accesses

Encryption/classification of 
information 

Backups and Penetration Tests

Employee training 
(e.g., cybersecurity, data protection)

Asset Management Systems

Compliance with the Quality Control
Plan (PCQ)
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Financial Risks

Risks Treatment/Response to risk

Refunding

Counterparty

Interest rates

Short-term Investment of treasury 
surpluses:

Investment policy for proper 
application of cash surpluses, which 
determines the maximum exposure 
per financial instrument and bank 
counterparty

Clients:

Control of the clients current account 
and credit claims 

Recording of impairment for 
receivables due above one year

Extension of the average debt 
maturity, making it more consistent 
with the long-term assets

Maintenance of a diversified debt 
repayment profile spread over time

Periodic debt service projections 
(treasury position and budget, and 
financial models)

Monitoring of financial markets and 
of the evolution of interest rates

Suitability of the fixed rate/floating 
rate mix

Implementation of sensitivity analyses

Entering of financial instruments for 
interest rate risk management
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Manuel Rebelo 
Teixeira Melo Ramos 
Managing Director 

02
CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

The following Governing Bodies were elected for the 2021-2023 period at the General Meeting held on 
23 April 2021:

 GOVERNING 
BODIES2.1

António de Magalhães 
Pires de Lima 
Chairman 

Fernando 
Aboudib Camargo   
Board Member 

Luís Eduardo Brito 
Freixial de Goes  
Board Member

Miguel José Pereira 
Athayde Marques *  
Board Member 

António José 
Louçã Pargana
Board Member 

Marta Brugnini 
de Sousa Uva Martinha 
Board Member 

António José Lopes 
Nunes de Sousa  
Board Member 

Maria de Fátima Henriques 
da Silva Barros Bertoldi *
Board Member 

José Maria Campos 
da Silva André * 
Board Member 

Board of Directors

* Independent Directors 

Daniel Alexandre 
Miguel Amaral  
Board Member 

Eduardo António 
da Costa Ramos 
Board Member 
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Board of the General Meeting                                             

Supervisory Board

Statutory Auditor

Tomás Vaz Pinto 

Secretary 

Helena Abecassis do Amaral Neto  

Member 

Tiago Vaz Pinto Cyrne de Castro  

Member 

Carlos José Figueiredo Rodrigues 
CA number 1737

Alternate 

Rui Jorge dos Anjos Duarte 
CA number 1532

Diogo da Gama Lobo Salema da Costa  

Alternate Member 

Pricewaterhousecoopers & Associados, 
SROC S.A. 
represented by:

Francisco de Sousa da Câmara   

Chairman of the Board 

Sílvia Olavo Cortês Marques de Carvalho    

Chairman 

During a meeting held on 18 May 2021, the Board 
of Directors appointed board member Manuel 
Rebelo Teixeira Melo Ramos to the position of 
Managing Director.

The Board of Directors appointed Tiago Severim 
de Melo Alves dos Santos to the position of 
Corporate Secretary and Sofia Gullander Metelo 
de Nápoles Carvalho to the position of Alternate 
Secretary.
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In order to ensure and 
demonstrate the separation, 
in the context of the Brisa 
Group, of all the rights, 
obligations, assets and 
liabilities allocated to the 
concession, the draft of which 
was approved by Council of 
Ministers Resolution 
198-B/2008 of 31 December, 
where BCR is the sole holder, 
a governance structure that 
embodies this independence 
was endorsed. 

Capital Structure
The Company’s capital, fully underwritten and paid, 
totals €75 000 000 (seventy-five million euros), 
represented by 15 000 000 (fifteen million) unlisted 
shares of a single category, with nominal value of 
€5 (five euros) each. Each share corresponds to 
one vote; no limitations whatsoever apply to the 
free exercise of voting. The shares are entirely 
held by Brisa Concessão Rodoviária, SGPS, S.A., 
in which Brisa Auto-Estradas de Portugal, S.A. 
holds a stake of 70%, the remaining 30% being 
held by Global Roads Investimentos, SGPS, Lda.

Limitations on BCR share transfer or ownership 
are as specified in the concession contract. 
Changes to the articles of association, pursuant 
to Article 16, are the exclusive responsibility of 
the General Meeting.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is composed of 12 (twelve) 
members, including three independent members 
in compliance with the following:

  (a) Not allowed to hold any executive positions 
in the Company.

  (b) None of the incompatibility situations 
established in article 414-A, point 1, of the 
Commercial Companies Code may apply, 
excluding that stipulated in paragraph b) of 
the aforementioned point.

  (c) Not allowed to hold or have held positions 
(executive or not) in the managing bodies of 
any Related Party.

Special Requirements of 
Independent Directors
In brief terms, the mentioned Article 414-A, point 1, 
of the Commercial Companies Code, specifies the 
incompatibility regime applicable to members of 
supervisory bodies, which is particularly stringent. 

In addition to the requirement that Directors 
must not hold or have held executive positions 
in companies that, directly or indirectly, hold more 
than 30% of the share capital of BCR, Directors 
will not be considered independent if they:

  (a) Benefit from particular advantages 
provided by the supervised company. 

 (b) Not applicable.

  (c) Are members of the governing bodies of 
companies in a controlling or group relationship 
with the supervised company. 

  (d) Are partners in a general partnership in 
a controlling or group relationship with the 
supervised company. 

  (e) Directly or indirectly provide services or 
establish a significant commercial relationship 
with the supervised company or with 
a company in a controlling or group relationship 
with the latter. 

  (f) Hold positions and act in representation or 
on behalf of a competitor, or are in any other 
manner bound to the interests of a competitor. 

 CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE2.2
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  (g) Are spouses, relatives or kin, up to the 3rd 
degree, of persons deemed ineligible by virtue 
of the provisions included in paragraphs a), c), 
d) and f), as well as spouses of persons in the 
situation described in paragraph e).

  (h) Hold management or supervisory positions 
at five companies, excluding law firms, audit 
firms and statutory auditor firms, to whom the 
regime specified in article 76 of Decree-Law 
487/99, of 16 November, applies. 

  (i) Are statutory auditors to whom other 
incompatibilities apply, as established in the 
respective legislation.

  ( j) Are prohibited, disqualified, insolvent, 
bankrupt or banned, even if temporarily, from 
holding public positions.

Specific Powers
BCR’s financing contracts include clauses whereby 
the following is determined:  

  (k) All contracts that BCR may enter into or 
renew, revoke or amend with related parties, 
irrespective of value, must be approved by at 
least 2 of the 3 aforementioned independent 
directors. 

  (l) Only dividend distribution proposals that 
have been previously approved by at least 2 
of the 3 aforementioned independent directors 
may be submitted to the General Meeting of 
BCR for appraisal. 

The Board of Directors does not hold the 
necessary powers to decide on any increase of 
the Company’s share capital.

Functioning 
of the Board of Directors
Aside from the requirement to include at least 
three independent members, under the terms 
previously described, no special rules apply to 
the composition of the Board of Directors, whose 

members are elected as specified in the Commercial 
Companies Code. Manuel Rebelo Teixeira Melo 
Ramos holds the position of Managing Director 
and the necessary powers to conduct the current 
management of BCR, under the general policies 
approved by the Board of Directors.

The Managing Director has been granted the 
following powers:

(ii) Jointly with another director or person with 
power of attorney for the following purposes:

  (a) Open, perform transactions and close bank 
accounts. 

  (b) Accept, draw, endorse and pay bills, 
cheques and invoices, in accounts opened in 
the name of BCR.

   (c) Deposit cash at banks and other credit 
institutions, into accounts already opened by 
BCR; 

  (d) Under the terms specifically defined by 
the Board of Directors, take out and cancel 
loans from banks and other credit institutions, 
national and/or foreign. 

  (e) Conclude, revoke, cancel, withdraw from or 
terminate insurance, leasing and long-term 
rental contracts and agreements, in any 
manner and for any reason.

(II) Separately

  (a) Within the limits of the monetary powers 
and duties, authorise payments, settle and 
liquidate accounts with debtors and creditors; 

 (b) Sign, dispatch and receive correspondence. 

  (c) Pay taxes and rates, namely to the 
Directorate-General of the Treasury and 
Finance and to the Social Security Financial 
Management Institute, claim undue payments 
and receive cancellation documents and the 
respective amounts. 

 (d) Issue receipts and grant discharge 

  (e)  Perform any land, commercial, motor vehicle 
and industrial property registration acts at the 
competent registry offices, by applying for 
registrations, notes and cancellations. 

  (f) Sign all documents required to pick up 
parcels, ordinary registered letters and any 
other correspondence addressed to BCR 
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at post offices, railway stations and other 
locations.  

  (g) Contract and exercise disciplinary, 
governing and supervisory powers over BCR’s 
employees, and represent BCR in its relations 
with workers. 

  (h) Produce and deliver all the items required 
for the making of decisions by the Board of 
Directors to the Directors of BCR, in advance, in 
accordance with the agenda of the respective 
meeting.

  (i) Submit all issues requiring specif ic 
technical studies or special services to the 
Board of Directors. 

  ( j) Represent BCR before any Ministry, 
D irectorate-General ,  Governmental 
Department, City Council, Government Office 
or other public or private entities.

  (k) Carry out the financial, operational, 
commercial, administrative, advertising and 
promotional management of BCR.

  (l) Represent BCR in court and out of court, 
actively or passively, as well as propose and 
pursue any legal or arbitral proceedings, 
make admissions therein, discontinue or 
settle proceedings, and enter into arbitration 
agreements.

Pursuant to the legal framework applicable to 
commercial companies structured as BCR (Board 
of Directors and Supervisory Board), proposals 
pertaining to the election of members of the 
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board 
may only be submitted by the shareholders, at the 
General Meeting. Under these terms, no statutory 
restrictions apply to the submission of proposals 
and election of the aforementioned bodies.

In the case of resignation or definitive impediment 
of any Directors during their term of office, the 
Board of Directors will designate a new member, 
which must be approved at the first General 
Meeting subsequently held.

Supervisory Body
The General Meeting held on 26 November 2013 
decided to change the supervisory body, with 

a Supervisory Board being elected, to replace 
the Statutory Auditor structure, in existence up 
to that date.
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03
BCR’S 
PERFORMANCE

Traffic on the BCR network 
grew by 8.4% in the 1st half 
of 2021, as the increase 
observed in the second 
quarter more than offset 
the decrease occurred in 
the first quarter of the year. 
Nevertheless, traffic is still 
26.1% lower than the value 
reported in the 1st half of 
2019. 

Traffic Evolution 
in the BCR Network
The beginning of 2021 was marked by a new 
State of Emergency in Portugal, as a result of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, which once again limited 
circulation and the free pursuit of economic 
activities. However, lockdown has eased in recent 
months, as the vaccination process advances, 
although some restrictions imposed by the 
Government still remain in place. As a result, 

a certain degree of economic recovery has been 
witnessed, which has had a positive impact on 
BCR’s network traffic.

Average Daily Traffic (ADT) during the 1st half of 
2021 increased by 9.0%, compared with the 1st 
half of the previous year, which corresponds to 
a traffic volume of 14 663 vehicles/day.

BUSINESS3.1

20201st half 2020: 13 452
1st half 2021: 14 663 2021

22 060

14 923

10 856
11 077

16 049

18 210

1T 2T 3T 4T

Quarterly ADT evolution 
(Average Daily Traffic)



37
 BCR’S PERFORMANCE

Traffic Breakdown 
(Cumulative; v.km)

Average Daily Traffic 
by Motorway

-0.1%

8.5% 8.4%

Organic 
growth

Calendar and Other 
Effects

Total 
(v. km)

Circulation (v.km) increased by 8.4%, on the back 
of economic recovery and organic growth. Despite 
this recovery, the  ADT decrease against the same 
period of 2019 stands at 26.1%.

The Portuguese Government declared a “State 
of Emergency” from January to April 2021 due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic, which led to a second 
lockdown. Mobility restrictions had a negative 
impact on BCR traffic, particularly over the first 
quarter. The comparison with the first quarter 
of the previous year was also affected by the 
baseline effect, as the first months of 2020 were 
positive, a trend observed until mid-March 2020 
(when the effects of the pandemic started being 
felt in Portugal). 

In the following months (second quarter of 2021), 
restrictions were gradually lifted, which led to 
a consistent recovery in traffic levels, despite the 
“State of Calamity” still in place. The comparison 
with the second quarter of 2020 is influenced 
by the fact that the first lockdown imposed in 
Portugal remained in place between mid-March 
and May 2020.

Traffic Growth 
(YoY; v.km)

67.7%

-31.7% 8.4%

1Q21 2Q21 1H21

All motorways in the concession registered 
increases in demand. It should be noticed 
that recovery has been slower for suburban 
motorways, namely the A9 (+1.2%) and A12 
(+4.4%). The highest YoY increase in ADT was 
observed for motorway A13 (+23.5%).

A1

A5

A12

A2

A6

A13

A3

A9

A14

A4

A10

BCR

8.5% 24 042

11.8% 10 894

9.1% 14 962

9.4% 24 812

6.6% 52 341

10.9% 3 905

1.2% 16 161

11.5% 5 932

4.4% 15 754

23.5% 3 450

7.5% 4 164

9.0% 14 663

ADTYoY%
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Heavy/Light 
Vehicles Growth  
(1st Half 2021; ADT)

Profit and Loss Statement

Analysis of traffic by vehicle type also shows 
a positive evolution, particularly for heavy vehicles 
(13.4%), when compared with light vehicles (8.6%).

In the 1st half of 2021, operating income totalled 
€231.9m, which represents a year-on-year increase 
of 8.9%, but a 22.5% decrease compared with the 
value reported in the 1st half of 2019 (€299.1m).
  Toll revenues reached €219.2m (YoY increase of 

9.1%), as a result of the aforementioned increase 
in traffic. 

  Revenues related to service areas reached 
€9.9m (YoY increase of 5.8%).

Operating costs reached €64.8m in the 1st half 
of 2021, representing a year-on-year decrease 
of 1.3%.

13.4%
8.6%

Traffic 
Mix

8.3%91.7%

Operating Income

64.8

-25.1

67.4

22.6

167.1

74.7

99.7

52.0

-1.3%

-12.9%

-1.8%

46.4%

13.4%

49.4%

26.6%

50.8%

231.9 8.9%

1H21 YoY (%)€m

65.6

-28.8

68.6

15.5

147.3

50.0

78.7

34.5

212.9

1H20

Operating Costs

Financial Results

Amortisation and Provisions

Tax

EBITDA

Profit Before Tax

EBIT

Net Profit

  External Supplies and Services, which mainly 
reflect the costs of subcontracted services 
for the operation and maintenance of the 
motorways under concession and electronic toll 
collection costs, decreased by 0.4%, compared 
with the 1st half of the previous year, having 
totalled €63.9m. 

  As of 30 June 2021, BCR had 9 employees, which 
accounted for personnel costs of €0.6m.

  Amortisation, Depreciation, Adjustments and 
Provisions, net of reversals, reached €67.4m 
(YoY decrease of 1.8%). It should be noted that 
the amortisation of assets associated to BCR’s 
concession rights was calculated based on traffic 
evolution. 

 
Operating Results (EBITDA) at the end of the 
1st half of 2021 totalled €167.1m, i.e., a year-on-
year increase of 13.4%, or €19.8m, although still 
representing a 28.1% decrease compared with 
the value reported in the 1st half of 2019, which 
was €232.4m. The increase in operating income, 
together with the decrease in costs, resulted in an 
increase in the EBITDA margin to 72.1% (compared 
with the 69.2% reported in the 1st half of 2020).

EBIT totalled €99.7m, representing a year-on-year 
increase of 26.6%.

The Financial Results of BCR remained negative, 
at €25.1m, although representing a year-on-year 
improvement of €3.7m.
  Financial Expenses and Losses evolved 

favourably, having decreased by 12.9% compared 
with the 1st half of the previous year. This was 
essentially due to a decrease in interest paid, 
due to the lower interest rates resulting from 
the refinancing of the €300m bond (coupon of 
3.875%, repaid in April 2021) and a decrease in 
gross debt compared with the end of 1st half of 
2020.

Net Profit totalled €52.0m, considering Earnings 
Before Tax of €74.7m and a deduction of €22.6m 
corresponding to Income Tax. Net Profit increased 
by 50.8%, compared with the 1st half of the previous 
year, despite having decreased by 37.5% compared 
with the 1st half of 2019.
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Investment (CAPEX) 
and Cashflow Generation 
(EBITDA-CAPEX)
BCR invested €11.9m over the 1st half of 2021, 
which represents a year-on-year decrease of 
48.8%. This investment was mostly allocated to 
widening and repaving works, albeit including 
€4.2m pertaining to major repairs, engineering 
and slope works (reported as provisions, under 
the terms of IFRIC 12), particularly i) repaving 
works on the A1; ii) viaduct repair works on the 
A2 and A3; and iii) slope stabilisation works on 
the A1, A2, A4, A5 and A9. Approximately €3.0m 
were allocated to widening of the A4, in the Águas 
Santas/Ermesinde (A4/A3) sub-stretch.

Based on planned works, investment is expected 
to increase over the 2nd half of 2021.

The cashflow generation indicator (EBITDA- 
CAPEX) reached €155.2m.

Statement of Financial Position
At the end of June 2021, BCR’s Assets totalled 
€2 273.3m, mostly composed of the intangible 
assets associated with motorway concession 
rights. Liabilities decreased by €28.5m, compared 
with December 2020 (to €2 130.4m), as a result of 
the €31m decrease in gross debt. Equity fell by 
€72.1m (to €142.9m), as a result of the payment of 
€124.2m to shareholder BCR SGPS, S.A., which was 
partly offset by Net Profit in the 1st half of 2021.

3.0

4.2

4.7

167.1

11.9

155.2

-31.2%

-70.8%

4.0%

13.4%

-48.8%

25.0%

1H21 YoY (%)€m

4.4

14.3

4.5

147.3

23.2

124.1

1H20

Widening Works

Major Repairs

Other 
(equipment, supervision, etc.)

EBITDA

CAPEX

EBITDA-CAPEX

1 498.5

2 046.0

83.0

99.9

44.5

2 145.9

127.4

265.4

366.5

2 273,3

142.9

2 130.4

4.3%

-2.1%

-44.5%

4.1%

16.0%

-1.8%

-32.1%

-25.9%

0.8%

-4.2%

-33.5%

-1.3%

1H21 YoY (%)€m

1 437.2

2 090.2

149.4

96.0

38.4

2 186.2

187.7

358.3

363.5

2 373.9

215.0

2 158.9

2020

Medium and Long-term Loans

Intangible

Cash and Equivalent

Other

Other

Non-Current

Current

Short-term Loans

Other

Assets

Equity

Liabilities



40
 BCR’S PERFORMANCE

Debt Profile and Liquidity Position
As of 30 June 2021, BCR’s gross debt totalled €1 795m (nominal). Repayments over the 1st half of 2021 
included €19.5m (EIB loan) and €300m (bond “Bond April 2021”). BCR issued medium- and long-term debt 
amounting to €200m over the same period, having also placed several issues of Commercial Paper with 
institutional investors, under Commercial Paper Programmes (debt totalling €105m had been issued 
under these programmes at the end of the 1st half of 2021).

BCR has funds and facilities in place that guarantee a solid liquidity position and a low refinancing risk, 
namely under the following: 

  Cash amounting to €83.0m as of June 2021 (of which approximately €73.7m were deposited in reserve 
accounts for investment and debt service).

  €250m corresponding to undrawn committed credit lines, spread among 5 different banks. During the 
1st half of 2021, a committed credit line of €50m reached its maturity and two new committed credit 
lines of €50m each were closed (total of €100m). 

  Signing of 3 programmes to place commercial paper with institutional investors, totalling €300m, of 
which €105m already issued as of 30 June 2021.

  Strong cashflow generation1, despite the negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic (€217m in 2020 
and €72m during the 1st half of 2021).

  Gradual debt amortisation profile, with no significant repayments until 2023. The largest annual 
repayment is lower than €340m.

1  Measured as operational cashflow minus payments (CAPEX) and 
financial expenses

JuneJune

Accounting DebtNominal Debt

Δ against Dec/2020 (€m/%)Δ against Dec/2020 (€m/%)€m

-31

-66

35

-317

-18

304

-14

-66

52

-300

-19

305

-1.8%

-44.5%

2.1%

-22.4%

-4.9%

-

-0.8%

-44.5%

3.1%

-21.1%

-5.0%

-

1 764

83

1 681

1 101

359

304

1 795

83

1 712

1 120

370

305

Gross Debt

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Net Debt

Bonds

EIB

Other Financing
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2H21

124

2023

339

2025

339

2027

339

2029

39

20312022

159

2024

174

2026

104

2028

39

2030

39

2032

100

Debt Amortisation Profile

ST Debt Other MLT Debt Bonds EIB

Approximately 62% of BCR’s debt was subject 
to fixed interest rates and 38% was subject to 
floating interest rates. The weighted average 
cost of debt during the 1st half (including the 
impact of derivative instruments) was 1.8%, which 
represents a decrease of approximately 0.3p.p. 
compared with the 1st half of 2020.

Covenants
BCR continues to follow a prudent financial 
management policy. The four covenants, in the 
form of financial ratios (namely Net Senior Debt/
EBITDA, Historic ICR, Forward Looking ICR and 
CLCR), to which BCR is subject remained within 
established thresholds as of 30 June 2021. The 
Net Debt/EBIDTA ratio stood at 4.42x, i.e., 0.58x 
below the minimum threshold of 5.0x set as the 
respective trigger event. The Historic ICR ratio 
stood at 7.53x as of 30 June 2021, i.e., significantly 
above the minimum threshold of 2.25x set as the 
respective trigger event threshold.

Rating

The ratings assigned to BCR by Fitch Ratings 
and Moody’s remained unchanged during the 1st 
half of 2021.

A-

Baa2

Stable

Stable

BCR Rating BCR Outlook

Fitch

Moody’s
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PEOPLE3.2
People represent the 
distinctive factor at Brisa. Their 
values, skills and mobilisation 
are crucial foundations for the 
accomplishment of the
strategy. 

BCR is strongly aware that people are one of 
the most valuable assets for the achievement 
of business goals.

BCR has a permanent staff of 9 employees, 
essentially composed of Directors, Managers 
and supporting staff. This is a multidisciplinary 
team, highly specialised in business management, 
engineering and management of infrastructures, 
road equipment, road systems and assets.

BCR fulf ils its obligations as a motorway 
concessionaire through service provision 
contracts with the largest companies of the Brisa 

Group. As the biggest client of infrastructure 
Operation and Maintenance companies, as well as 
technology and shared service providers, BCR sets 
high performance standards and bears decisive 
influence over the standards adopted by such 
companies.

BCR’s people management model is integrated 
in the Brisa Group model and ensures, through 
integrated policies, the implementation of 
processes aimed at creating value, ensuring 
sustainability and fostering the development of 
human potential.

These policies are implemented through best 
practices and the continuous development of 
innovative processes, such as to ensure the 
highest performance standards. Performance 
and skills development are key aspects within 
this context.

Ensuring the best working conditions for 
all employees engaged in the pursuit of 
the company’s goals is a key pillar in BCR’s 
activities. Brisa Gestão de Infraestruturas and 
Brisa Operação e Manutenção, the companies 
responsible for the operation, maintenance and 
conservation of road infrastructures, ensure the 
implementation of best practices in what regards 
occupational risk assessment and control, as well 
as the engagement of the Board of Directors, 
the entire senior management structure and all 
workers in the definition of responsibilities, control 
and continuous improvement of the Occupational 
Safety Management System.

Together with the remaining Brisa Group 
companies involved in motorway management, 
BCR started the certification process of its 
occupational health and safety system, in 
compliance with the ISO 45001 Standard, in the 
1st half of 2021.

The purposes of this certif ication are to 
improve existing safety procedures, implement 
a continuous improvement model and ensure all 
requirements are met. Based on the diagnosis 
already conducted, BCR will focus on improving 
the safety systems of external entities contracted 
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to perform tasks pertaining to the infrastructures 
managed by the company, which will impact the 
entire supply chain.

2021 remains affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Nevertheless, all motorways managed by BCR 
continued to operate seamlessly, owing to 
the efforts of the company’s operational and 
maintenance teams.
 
Safety conditions based on COVID-19 safety 
and prevention procedures were ensured to all 
operational teams, which resulted in an absence 
of cases of the disease at work.

The Brisa + Vida Programme includes a series of 
measures aimed at promoting a sound work-life 
balance. The development of this programme 
and the associated measures have improved 
wellbeing, employee satisfaction and employee 
engagement, not only at BCR but across the Brisa 
Group.

Several initiatives were undertaken during the 1st 
half of 2021 to prepare the Brisa + Vida programme 
for the integration of the new version of the 
underlying Standard (1000-1 – version 5), in order 
to ensure that the corresponding certification is 
maintained.

Communication processes were also improved 
during this period.  New measures are being 
defined for implementation in the 2nd half of the 
current year.

In order to strengthen the work-life balance 
culture, the “Essential Brisa + Vida” online training 
course, developed in “My Brisa” in late 2020, was 
made available to all employees in 2021, in order 
to promote the Brisa + Vida programme and the 
associated measures. A total of 1 499 employees 
have participated in this process.

The development of skills is accomplished through 
continuous training and employee participation 
in multidisciplinary projects. BCR and the Brisa 
Group companies that provide services to BCR 
have implemented training and development 
processes and programmes in different technical 
and behavioural areas. The training process is 

organized by Brisa’s corporate centre, which 
resorts to the best specialists in several areas. 
It should also be noted that Brisa is certified by 
the Directorate-General for Employment and 
Labour Relations (DGERT) in the areas of health 
and safety, protection of people and assets, and 
employee integration.

BCR is already using the new website, which 
presents the Brisa Group from the point of view 
of the various recruiting brands, as well as its 
value proposition in the area of human resources. 
The website also promotes the Group’s young 
talent programmes and advertises all external 
and internal employment opportunities, having 
represented the main driver of recruitment during 
the 1st half of 2021.
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INNOVATION3.3
BCR boasts a longstanding 
tradition of innovation, 
having long focused on 
engineering and road safety 
solutions and environmental 
management. In recent years, 
the company has sought to 
create smart motorways, 
where telematic road traffic 
systems have revolutionised 
operations and customer 
service. 

As an integral part of BCR’s business model, 
innovation drives the high level of service and 
operating efficiency that are the hallmarks of this 
road concession.

In this sense, BCR relies on several Brisa Group 
units, with which it cooperates. Regarding toll and 
mobility services, Via Verde Portugal defies the 
Group’s technological capacity. A-to-Be includes 
the Group’s developments in its portfolio of 
technological solutions. The Technologies and 
Systems Department implements new solutions 
in production environments. Finally, Grow Mobility 
identifies start-ups capable of developing pilot 
projects that add value to BCR and the Group. 

Several projects developed in 2019 and 2020 
were consolidated over the 1st half of 2021, 
namely C-Roads Portugal, C-Streets, MedTIS 
III, ArcAtlantique III and Road Safety. These 
European projects, which are co-funded by the 
“CEF – Connecting Europe Facility Transport” 
programme, strengthen the culture of continuous 

investment in innovation adopted by BCR, by 
focusing primarily on:
  Expansion of the C-ITS network through the 

implementation of 5 large pilot projects over 
approximately 1 000 km of infrastructures. 

  Validation of 5G technology for connected 
cooperative mobility purposes in autonomous 
vehicles. 

  Infrastructure digitisation and process 
automation. 

  Information security (cybersecurity).

European Funding: 
€1.14m over the last two years 

BCR benefits from co-funding for the C-Roads 
Portugal, C-Streets, MedTIS III, ArcAtlantique III 
and Road Safety projects. C-Streets and Road 
Safety represent the most relevant European 
investments, with repayment rates of 50% and 
20%, respectively. In the last two years, BCR 
received €1.14m for the funding and pre-funding 
of the mentioned projects. Expense reports 
submitted in the 1st half of the current year indicate 
that identical repayments will be made until early 
2022. Future projects are also being analysed, in 
line with the new European pluriannual framework 
for 2021-2027, which includes new versions of the 
CEF programme.



45
 BCR’S PERFORMANCE

Contactless Solutions
In the pandemic context and intrinsic need to
minimise contact, solutions have been 
developed for contactless payment solutions 
through QR code at drive-throughs and the 
automation of the physical discharge of 
tickets at the toll plaza.

Electric Charging
In partnership with players of the industry, 
a backend technical operational solution and 
software development kit (SDK) app have been 
developed to give Via Verde service users the 
capability of finding, connecting, starting and 
ending sessions at electric charging stations.

Collaboration with research centres and universities 
Through the Brisa Group and in order to apply the knowledge acquired to company operations, BCR 
has developed several research projects in collaboration with the academic community, namely through 
the following partnerships:

These research projects focus primarily on vehicle communication solutions, particularly vehicle-to-
vehicle (V2V) and vehicle-to-infrastructure (V2I) applications, as well as collection of information on road 
and vehicle conditions, in order to increase road safety.

Innovation projects

3 collaborative projects with research groups from 
the Universities of Aveiro, Coimbra and Lisbon3
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Road Safety 

Road Safety is a central value 
in the activity of BCR and one 
of the main services provided 
to its clients. 

This priority is ensured through several courses of 
action, particularly a rigorous traffic management 
policy; road maintenance and conservation; 
continuous improvement of equipment, systems 
and procedures; and continuous communication 
and provision of information to several population 
segments.

BCR responded to the challenge set by the 
European Union to reduce the number of road 
accident fatalities by 50% between 2010 and 2020. 
This number decreased by 56.9% (from 51 to 22) 
in BCR’s motorway network over that decade. BCR 
is committed to achieving the new target set by 
the European Union for 2020-2030: reducing the 
number of deaths and serious injuries by 50%.

Accident Indicators
The total number of accidents in the BCR network 
increased slightly, compared with the 1st half of 
2020 (1.1%). However, the accident rate decreased 
by 6.1%. The fatal accident rate increased, 
compared with the 1st half of the previous year. 
A year-on-year increase was also observed in 
the severe injury accident rate.

COMMUNITY1.4
831

24.65

0.86

7.06

3.36

0,24

8.96

0.24

6,17

0.65

1.1%

-6.1%

79.7%

-9.0%

63.4%

48.7%

-13.9%

48.7%

-13.3%

36.3%

1H 2021*
2021/2020 

change

822

26.24

0.48

7.76

2.06

0.16

10,41

0.16

7.12

0.48

1H 2020

Total accidents

Accident rate

Severe injury rate

Accident index

Severity index

Fatality rate

Minor injury rate

Fatal accident 
rate

Minor injury 
accident rate

Severe injury 
accident rate

Key accident indicators

Motorway operation, 
maintenance and improvement 

Among the actions carried out to promote 
road safety, road surface improvements 
and reinforcement works on motorways are 
noteworthy. These investments involve an 
improvement in traffic conditions, an increase in 
the number of road stretches widened and the 
installation and improvement of road signs.

BCR’s continuous efforts to increase road safety 
entail several investments and activities, namely 
the following:
  The Operational Coordination Centre (OCC), 

which is responsible for the central management 
of all operational and maintenance activities, 
including road and emergency assistance on 
motorways.

  Coverage of the Group’s entire motorway 
network by the telematics and road safety 
system (iBrisa).

  Infrastructure works, namely road widening; 
improvement of traffic conditions; repaving; 
repair and replacement of gantries and semi-
gantries; renovation of central reservations and 
road equipment.

(*) provisional data
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  Improvement of communication systems and 
traffic information - through dedicated road 
signs; media and digital communication channels 
(Via Verde app) and customer service.

Response to 
emergency situations
A proper response to emergency situations is 
crucial to reducing risks, mitigating impact and 
increasing the success of emergency response 
services.

For this purpose, BCR has adopted control 
systems, as well as technical, organisational and 
management solutions, in order to provide an 
adequate response to emergencies and protect 
persons and local communities. These efforts are 
undertaken in close cooperation with competent 
authorities and entities (ANPC – Civil Protection 
Authority, GNR – National Republican Guard, PSP 
– Public Safety Police, and fire brigades, among 
others).

Road Safety Observatory
Created in 2018, the Road Safety Observatory 
aims to strengthen the company’s capabilities 
and skills in responding to the challenge of 
reducing the road accident rate. Its mission is to 
issue recommendations, with a view to defining 
strategies and initiatives aimed at reducing the 
number of accidents.

The Road Safety Observatory, whose team 
represents relevant Group areas involved in these 
issues, is responsible for the following tasks:
  Collecting and analysing statistic information 

and data on the incidents occurred in the 
network managed by BCR.

  Producing studies and proposals to support 
strategic decision-making, with a view to 
increasing road safety and reducing the accident 
rate.

  Promoting communication with external 
stakeholders, when appropriate, on road safety 
telematics, for the purpose of proposing joint 
initiatives aimed at increasing road safety and 
reducing the accident rate.

Service quality
The quality of the assistance and first-aid services 
provided by BCR to clients and motorway users 
(including mobility services) is crucial to creating 
value, in terms of social capital and relations with 
BCR.

Through the OCC and Road Assistance, BCR 
ensures the provision of assistance to clients. 
The key indicators for the 1st half of 2021 are as 
follows:
  Patrolling and assistance service quality:

    4 414 131 km travelled by road assistance 
vehicles

    57 822 events occurred across the network 
(number of incidents resolved in collaboration 
with the OCC)

  6.4 minutes - average response time to an event
     Customer Support Line: 

210 730 300
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ENVIRONMENT3.5
As motorways have 
a significant impact on the 
environment, BCR seeks 
to continually improve its 
environmental management 
policy, at all stages, from 
design and construction to 
operation and maintenance. 
The main goal is always to 
prevent, mitigate and offset 
impacts. 

The environmental strategy and action of BCR 
on environmental matters are aligned with the 
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals, 
in addition to focusing on ensuring compliance 
with the most relevant environmental policy 
guidelines, laws and regulations, particularly in 
what concerns the protection of biodiversity, 
mitigation of impacts associated with traffic, 
climate change and decarbonisation.

During the 1st half of 2021, BCR focused primarily 
on the improvement of environmental data 
collection and processing systems, as well as 
the monitoring of operational goals, having also 
participated, as part of the Brisa Group, in the 
production of the strategic plan “Vision25” for 
2021-2025. Approved at the end of the 1st half 
of 2021, this strategic plan includes a series of 
environmental projects and initiatives that will 
strongly influence BCR’s activities.
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Main projects
Operational efficiency and the mitigation and offsetting of environmental impacts constitute the basis 
of BCR’s environmental goals and projects. The systematic, all-round, collaborative response to the 
challenges posed by climate change has been at the top of the company’s agenda since 2018, as BCR 
participated in the Brisa Group Climate 2.0 project from the very start.

A review by BCR of its environmental action in 2019 led to the following conclusions:

Waste
1. Produced in the operational

activities of the supporting
companies 

2. Resulting from accidents

Fuel
1. Vehicles for personal use

2. Generators

Water
1. Operational

Coordination Centre 

2. Operational Centres

3. Cleaning of toll
plazas 

4. Irrigation system

Electricity
1. Operational Coordination

Centre 

2. Operational Centres

3. Motorway lighting

4. Toll Plazas

5. Service areas

1

3

4

22

1

1

1

2

1
5

4

2

3
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Following on from the Climate 2.0 project, 
various special projects were continued, named 
Climate 2.X, which remained focused on reducing 
environmental impact on energy, water and the 
circular economy. The following actions were 
undertaken in the 1st half of 2021:

Climate 2.1 Energy
  Promotion of energy transition in BCR’s 

operations.

  Development and start of the implementation of 
the Energy Efficiency in Public Lighting project 
across the BCR Concession: replacement of 
current lights with LED lights. 

Reduction of emissions, in line with 
the European Union goal of reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions to 55% by 
2030.

Combination of energy-efficient solutions, 
to be implemented in a phased manner 
over a four-year period.

Increased generation of photovoltaic solar 
energy, reduction of energy consumption 
for lighting purposes, and development 
of a pilot project for the production and 
supply of green hydrogen to be used by 
the vehicle fleet.

Integrated management of energy-
efficient solutions based on an Artificial 
Intelligence system, in order to optimise 
overall performance.

Energy Transition

Introduction 
of LED lighting 
technology
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BCR developed a new network of fast and 
super-fast electric charging points along its 
motorways, which will become operational 
over the current year, under trademark Via 
Verde Electric. This network will include 82 
electric charging points installed at 21 Service 
Areas.

The first electric charging points were opened 
in April 2021. As of 28 July, the BCR motorway 
network offers 27 electric charging points, 
located across the entire Portuguese territory 
and near the Spanish border, including fast 
and ultra-fast charging points, located at 12 
Service Areas.

Thanks to Brisa, vehicles are able to travel 
a distance of over 600 kilometres, from Minho 
to Algarve, without emitting greenhouse 
gases.

The Via Verde Electric network is BCR’s most 
recent contribution to the transition to electric 
mobility as a solution for road transport 
decarbonisation, by facilitating the use of 
electric vehicles in medium- and long-distance 
journeys.

The new Via Verde Electric network is a Brisa 
partnership with BP, Cepsa, EDP Comercial, 
Galp Electric, Ionity and Repsol, representing 
a total investment of about 10 million euros.

Via Verde Electric Project
  Development of an electric mobility project: 

Via Verde Electric Project

Barcelos N/S

Álcacer do Sal

Santarém N/S

Santarém S/N

Antuã

Mealhada

Aljustrel

Almodôvar

Pombal

Leiria

Aveiras

Palmela N/S

Estremoz

Fast charging 

Super-fast 
charging

Note: map updated on 28 July 2021



52
 BCR’S PERFORMANCE

Key indicators
Brisa Concessão Rodoviária is responsible for 
the management and operation of a series of 
motorways and the respective service areas. 
This responsibility is ensured by Brisa Group 
companies that provide support services to BCR:
  Brisa Operação e Manutenção (BO&M) – road 

infrastructure operation and maintenance 
services.

  Brisa Gestão de Infraestruturas (BGI) – 
specialised engineering and maintenance 
services.

  Brisa Áreas de Serviço (BAS) – service area 
management.

The financial control method was used to calculate 
the environmental impact associated with the 
activities of Brisa Concessão Rodoviária.  In terms 
of results consolidation, the operational data of 
the companies responsible for providing support 
services were allocated to BCR, as the latter is 
the effective holder of the assets in question 
(road infrastructures, including tolls; operational 
centres; service areas).

In this sense, operational goals were defined and 
approved for the aforementioned companies 
(consumption of electricity, fuel and water; GHG 
emissions; and waste generation), which were 
included in the 2021 Plan and Budget.

Electricity consumption: 17% by 2028

Fuel consumption: 53% by 2028

Water consumption: 3% by 2025

Waste generation: implementation of an 
action plan

Reduction goals

Reference year: 2019

Electricity Consumption
Electricity consumption increased in the 1st half 
of 2021, compared with the 1st half of 2020.

A detailed analysis will be included in the 2021 
annual report.
 
BCR is currently implementing the Energy 
Consumption Rationalisation Plan (ECRP), which 
aims to optimise this indicator through efficient, 
rational consumption and investment in efficient 
equipment.

Fuel Consumption
Fuel consumption increased in the 1st half of 2021, 
compared with the 1st half of 2020.

Note:  The value calculated for the 1st half of 2021 includes 7.6% of 
estimated consumption

Electricity Consumption  (103 GJ)

Fuel Consumption (103 GJ)
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Both these periods were affected by the lower 
activity levels caused by the COVID-19 pandemic 
and the lockdown measures adopted. However, 
this effect was more significant in 1st half of 2020, 
which accounts for the difference in consumption 
when compared to the same period of 2021.

Energy Consumption
Energy consumption increased in the 1st half of 
2021, compared with the 1st half of 2020, as a result 
of increased electricity and fuel consumption. The 
increase in electricity consumption associated with 
the operation of BCR’s infrastructures accounted 
for most of this difference (about 91%).

GHG emissions
Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions are calculated 
as the sum of electricity and fuel consumption, 
multiplied by an emission factor. Two categories 
of GHG emissions are considered: i.e.,:
  Scope 1 emissions = Fuel consumption x Emission 

factor (for the respective vehicle or generator category)

  Scope 2 emissions = Electricity consumption 
x Emission factor (associated with the generation of the 

aforementioned energy)

Energy consumption (103 GJ)
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Electricity Fuel

Cumulative emissions increased in the 1st half of 
2021, compared with the same period of 2020.

Both these periods were affected by the lower 
activity levels caused by the COVID-19 pandemic 
and the lockdown measures adopted. However, 
this effect was more significant in 1st half of 2020, 
which accounts for the difference in consumption 
when compared to the same period of 2021.

A significant improvement in management 
processes and a consequent reduction in 
water consumption are expected after the 
implementation of the Climate 2.4 – Water 
project, which focuses strongly on rational water 
consumption.

Water Consumption
Water consumption increased slightly in the 1st half 
of 2021, compared with the same period of 2020.

Note:  The company Brisa Áreas de Serviço is outside the scope of 
consolidation for the water indicator.

Note:  The market-based method was used to report cumulative 
values (scope 1 + scope 2).

Water Consumption (103 m3)

24.6 25.5

1H20 1H21

GHG Emissions A1+A2 (MB) (103 tCO2e)

2.6 2.7

1H20

3

2

1

0

1H21

Scope 1 Scope 2 (MB)
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Waste Generation
The quantity of waste sent to final destinations 
decreased slightly over the period under analysis.

A reduction in the amount of waste generated 
by Brisa Concessão Rodoviária is expected after 
the implementation of the Climate 2.3 – Circular 
Economy project, which focuses strongly on 
improving waste management.

Biodiversity
The managed area included in the Natura 2000 
Network totals 359.12 hectares. The area is 
identical to that reported in previous years, as no 
new infrastructures were built, or roads widened 
such as to interfere with Natura 2000 Network 
areas.

Monitoring of the running over of fauna across 
the road network in the 1st half of 2021 revealed 
that 2 wild rabbits were run over on sub-stretches 
crossing Natura 2000 Network areas. Wild rabbits 
are currently considered an endangered species, 
according to the status alteration introduced by 

Waste generation (ton)
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1200

1000

800

600

400

200

0

1H21

Note:  The value calculated for 1H21 included 21% of estimated 
generation

366 595

961

Recovery
Non

Hazardous LandfillHazardous
Tons

(t)

945

961

16

Total

Total Waste per Type and Final 
Destination

the International Union for Conservation of Nature 
(IUCN) in December 2019.

As part of its biodiversity policy, Brisa is committed 
to restoring and protecting certain habitats, such 
as to prevent or restore the negative impact of 
its activities.

Taking the actions undertaken in the 1st half 
of 2021 into account, the area of protected 
or recovered habitats totalled approximately 
1 423 m2.

Environmental Monitoring
General Environmental Monitoring Plans (GEMP) 
covered a total length of approximately 300 km 
in the 1st half of 2021.

A1 - 85 km
A2 - 80 km
A3 - 18 km
A4 - nó Campo
A5 - 7 km
A10 - 39 km
A12 - 3 km
A13 - 68 km

Oporto

Lisbon

Coimbra

Évora

Faro

A3

A4

A14

A1

A2

A6A9

A10 A13

A12A5
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More specifically, the sampling tasks carried out 
within the scope of the GEMP in the 1st half of 
2021 were as follows:

Noise management in the Concession area is 
a crucial aspect, as it has a significant impact on 
persons living in the vicinity of motorways.

In this sense, Action Plans have been implemented, 
based on methods that seek to prioritise 
investment in noise minimisation measures, 
supported by the Integrated Noise Management 
System developed by the Environmental 
Department.

31

9

Samples

Samples

Underground Water

Surface Water

Monitoring of fauna
Ecosystems

Tests scheduled to take 
place in 2H2021

Noise



56
 BCR’S PERFORMANCE

António de Magalhães Pires de Lima

Manuel Rebelo Teixeira Melo Ramos

Daniel Alexandre Miguel Amaral

Eduardo António da Costa Ramos

Marta Brugnini de Sousa Uva Martinha

António José Lopes Nunes de Sousa

Luís Eduardo Brito Freixial de Goes

Fernando Aboudib Camargo

António José Louçã Pargana

Miguel José Pereira Athayde Marques

Maria de Fátima Henriques da Silva Barros Bertoldi

José Maria Campos da Silva André

The Board of Directors



04
ANNEXES



58
ANNEXES

31.12.202030.06.2021Notes

15 246 133

1 692

75 000 000

1 437 170 968

6 089 082

15 039 390
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 1 498 547 798

25 129 825
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34 403 326

15 000 000

247 552 605

  37 641 602

2 090 183 738

2 186 179 555

149 358 884

124 231 072

28 749 372

18 637 853

9 543 038

445 446 163

 2 373 890 119

   698 349

  43 598 713

15 000 000

  242 227 476

  13 059 297

2 045 994 751

 2 145 901 229

  82 963 611

  52 004 802

23 248 074

 7 248 388
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366 446 666

2 273 335 477
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 36 910
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   719 758

   20 181

358 258 334
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13 257 253

79 835 591

 187 710 564
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 2 373 890 119
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127 434 248
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 1 764 036 541
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Non-current assets:

Current assets:

Shareholders’ equity:

Non-current liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Tangible fixed assets

Inventories

Share capital

Loans 

Provisions

Advances on account of tangible fixed assets

Trade and other receivables

Legal reserve

Provisions

Trade payables

Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Net income for the period

Other non-current liabilities

Investment payables

Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilities

Assets under right of use

Other current assets

Other reserves

Other payables

Loans

Other payables

Other current liabilities

Deferred tax assets

Total current assets

Total shareholders’ equity

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Total assets

Financial Statements and Notes 
(Amounts stated in Euros)

Statement of Financial Position
As at June 2021 and 31 December 2020
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30.06.202030.06.2021Notes

210 224 243

(64 151 418)

-

229 082 530

(63 884 606)

285

3

4

5

6

  2 718 443

(771 334)

  49 952 223

34 481 962

 

   152 486

  34 634 448

  2 565 736

225 552 062

(613 506)

(23 273 532)

2.30 

(30 510)

(146 824 265)

  78 727 797

(15 470 261)

152 486

2 785 169

(637 841)

74 651 898

52 004 802

127 710

  52 132 512

  1 189 015

238 750 313

(516 247)

(16 202 783)

3.47 

(38 785)

(139 042 461)

  99 707 852

(22 647 096)

127 710

3

12 & 22

3

18

19

7

59 738

(47 345 652)

(654 411)

2.30 

(9 983 902)

(28 775 574)

  9 983 902

   66 215

(51 919 763)

(215 052)

3.47 

(5 627 384)

(25 056 239)

  5 627 384

3

9,10 & 11

7

3

5

3

Operating income:

Operating expenses:

Financial expenses and losses

Services rendered

External supplies and services

Financial income and gains

Other operating income and gains

Personnel costs

Profit before tax

Net income for the half year

Earnings per share:

Income recognized directly in shareholders’ equity

Total net income and other comprehensive income for the half year

Reversals of provisions

Total operating income

Adjustments

Provisions

Basic

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating results

Income Tax

Other income and expenses recognized in 
shareholders’ equity that will be reclassified to results:

Change in the fair value of financial instruments, 
net of the tax effect

Reversals of adjustments

Amortization and depreciation 

Taxes

Diluted

Costs associated with construction services

Revenue associated with construction services

Statement of Income and Other Comprehensive Income
For the half years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020
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Total
Interim 

Dividends
Other 

Reserves
Share 

Capital

Net Income 
for the half 

year
Legal 

ReserveNotes

  34 481 962

(135 362 456)

(124 231 072)

  52 004 802

  125 074 729

  142 852 270

  225 940 281

  214 950 830

(137 544)

   127 710

  34 634 448

  52 132 512

   152 486

-

  69 147 690

-

-

-

-

(69 147 690)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

   592 767

   847 468

   577 825

   719 758

(137 544)

   127 710

   152 486

   127 710

   152 486

-

-

-

-

  75 000 000

  75 000 000

  75 000 000

  75 000 000

-

-

-

-

-

  34 481 962

(204 510 146)

(124 231 072)

  52 004 802

  34 481 962

  52 004 802

  204 510 146

  124 231 072

-

-

  34 481 962

  52 004 802

-

-

-

-

-

  15 000 000

  15 000 000

  15 000 000

  15 000 000

-

-

-

-

-

8

8

8

12 & 22

12 & 22

Balance on 1 January 2020

Appropriation of results of 2019:

Appropriation of results of 2020:

Balance on 1 January 2021

Distribution of reserves

Increase / (decrease) in fair value of 
hedging financial instruments, net of 
the tax effect

Increase / (decrease) in fair value 
of hedging financial instruments, 
net of the tax effect

Net Income for the half year - 2020

Dividends distributed

Dividends distributed

Net income for the half year - 2021

Balance on 30 June 2020

Balance on 30 June 2021

Total net income and other 
comprehensive income for the half year

Total net income and other 
comprehensive income for the half year

Statement of changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the half years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020
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20202021Notes

  223 408 954

(11 477 948)

232 766 555

(10 914 315)

(75 106 482)

   102 863

84 000 000

(14 993 680)

(144 492 704)

  231 915 917

(139 745 292)

(135 500 000)

(235 524 861)

(293 802)

  147 539 694

-

  110 638 436

(5 603 131)

(83 853 962)

139 343

  639 000 000

(11 423 429)

(653 492 704)

149 358 884

(66 395 273)

(124 231 072)

(176 340 332)

(219 337)

148 356 540

    83

  121 229 062

(7 332 319)

13

8

(762 778)

   31 950

   134 813

(14 858 867)

(39 234 856)

  92 170 625

(3 499)

(319 524 861)

(19 820 179)

(556 053)

-

139 426

(11 284 003)

(37 381 469)

  82 963 611

(15 750)

(815 340 332)

(8 880 844)

13

Operating activities:

Investing activities:

Financing activities:

Receipts from clients

Receipts arising from:

Receipts arising from:

Payments relating to:

Payments relating to:

Change in cash and cash equivalents (4) = (1) + (2) + (3) 

Payments for infrastructure replacement

Payments to suppliers 

Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Loans obtained

Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Loans obtained

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of half year

Dividends

Flows from financing activities (3)

Derivative financial instruments

Flows generated by operations

Interest and similar income

Flows from operating activities (1)

Other (payments) / receipts relating to 
operating activities

Payments to personnel

Investment subsidies

Flows from investing activities (2)

Interest and similar expenses

Cash and cash equivalents at end of half year

Right of use

Payment of income tax

Cash Flow Statement for the Half Years
Ended 30 June 2021 and 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at 30 June 2021

1. INTRODUCTORY NOTE
Brisa – Concessão Rodoviária, S.A. (“Company” or “BCR”), formerly MCall – Serviços de Telecomunicações, 
S.A., was incorporated in 2001 and as from 30 April 2010, following the spin-off of the call centre services 
business development unit into a new company and consequent amendment of the Company’s articles 
of association, BCR’s main object became the construction, maintenance and operation of motorways 
and respective service areas, pursuant to concession contracts, and the planning and development of 
social equipment infrastructures.

The above-mentioned spin off was realized in April 2010, with accounting effect as at 1 January 2010, 
following the separation of the net assets of the call centre services unit.

On 22 December 2010, the Company, which integrates the consolidation perimeter of the Brisa Group, was 
ceded by Brisa - Auto-Estradas de Portugal, S.A. (“BAE”) the latter’s position in the concession contract 
approved by Council of Ministers’ Resolution no. 198-B/2008, of 31 December (“Brisa Concession”). This 
operation was followed by the cession by BAE of a set of assets and liabilities allocated to the Brisa 
Concession, as a contribution in kind for the purpose of a share capital increase that took place on 22 
December 2010.

The bases of the Brisa Concession were established pursuant to Decree-Law 467/72, of 22 November, 
namely the construction, maintenance, and operation of motorways. Since then, the concession’s bases 
have been revised on several occasions, with the introduction of amendments to the concession contract.  

Decree-Law 294/97, of 24 October, Decree-Law 287/99, of 28 July, Decree-Law 314 A/2002, of 26 December, 
and Decree-Law 247-C/2008, of 30 December, approved the bases of the concession currently in force, 
among which, due to their relevant impact on the Company’s financial and economic situation, the 
following are to be highlighted: 
  The fixing of the extension of the network under concession. At present, the motorway network 

under concession and open to traffic has 1 100 kilometres, of which 86 kilometres are not subject to 
tolls. The network under concession will be complete with the construction of the access to the new 
Lisbon airport, the extension of which will depend on its location. 

  The term of the concession was fixed as at 31 December 2035 and the tangible and intangible fixed 
assets directly related to the concession, which are recognized in the financial statements, will revert 
to the State at the end of same.

  The Company’s minimum share capital is Euros 75 million.
  In the last five years of the concession the State may terminate the same against compensation 

payable to the Concessionaire.

The supervision of the concession rests with the Ministry of Finance for financial matters and the 
Ministry responsible for the road sector for the remaining issues.
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2. MAIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Bases of presentation
The financial statements were prepared according to the provisions of IAS 34 – Interim Financial 
Reporting and should therefore be read together with the financial statements for the financial year 
ended on 31 December 2020.

Accounting policies
The accounting policies are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the financial statements 
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2020 and referred to in the respective notes to the financial 
statements.

During the half year ended on 30 June 2021, interpretations, amendments, and revisions of standards 
endorsed by the European Union came in force but had no impact on the financial statements of the 
Company.

3. OPERATING INCOME
Operating income for the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020 had the following breakdown:

(a)  Within the scope of the BCR concession contract, framed under IFRC 12, the construction activity is sub-contracted to external specialized 
companies. As result, BCR does not earn any margin from the construction of assets allocated to the concession; hence, revenue and 
costs associated with the construction of these assets present the same amount.

30.06.202030.06.2021

  200 835 073  219 152 543

  9 389 170

   631 217

   786 112

  2 565 736

   59 738

   438 100

  9 983 902

   7 891

  2 718 443

  9 929 987

   784 332

   786 112

  1 189 015

   66 215

   509 608

  5 627 384

   105 536

  2 785 169

  210 224 243

   570 967

  2 625 474

   284 156

  225 552 062

  229 082 530

   564 120

  1 255 230

   35 461

  238 750 313

Services rendered:

Other operating income and gains:

Reversal of amortization, depreciation, adjustments and provisions:

Tolls

Compensation for operating losses (Note 20)

Reversals of adjustments (Note 18)

Service areas

Recovery of revenues

Reversals of provisions (Note 19)

Toll fines

Revenue associated with construction services (a)

Other

Gains on tangible and intangible fixed assets

Equipment rental
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In the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, the operating income included transactions realized 
with group companies and other related parties in the amounts of Euros 1 421 093 and Euros 10 327 
035, respectively (Note 24).

During the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, there were sharp decreases in the Company’s 
activity, due to the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic on the normal circulation of people as consequence 
of the restrictions imposed during these periods. Periods of mandatory confinement and the imposition 
of other measures, such as the adoption of teleworking, which significantly affected the Company’s 
normal performance, were enacted.

It is the Company’s estimate that these impacts will continue to occur during the second half of the year.

4. EXTERNAL SUPPLIES AND SERVICES
External supplies and services for the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020 had the following 
breakdown:

In the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, external supplies and services acquired from group 
companies and other related parties amounted to Euros 62 134 622 and Euros 62 201 435, respectively 
(Note 24).

30.06.202030.06.2021

  10 842 248

   375 245

   58 714

   126 945

   105 072

  46 452 212

  1 523 489

   1 900

   43 515

  10 851 050

   587 922

   180 162

   63 720

   153 907

  46 377 391

   832 002

   77 350

   48 893

  3 278 747

   267 096

   99 251

   106 869

   775 191

   94 926

  64 151 418

  3 610 639

   137 984

   109 282

   16 977

   778 074

   59 253

  63 884 606

Logistical and administrative support 

Technical and administrative assistance

Other

Legal and tax advice

Other

Operation and maintenance

Motorway stretches

Fees

Legal and notarial services 

Electronic toll services

Advertising 

Insurance

Studies and opinions

Maintenance and repairs:

Fuel

Communication
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5. FINANCIAL RESULTS
Financial results for the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020 had the following breakdown:

30.06.202030.06.2021

  20 420 501

-

  28 775 574

(28 775 574)

  16 715 114

    285

  25 056 239

(25 055 954)

  3 722 215

  4 632 858

  3 591 891

  4 749 234

Interest borne with loans obtained

Other

Expenses and losses:

Income and gains:

Financial results

Financial update of provisions for infrastructure replacement (Note 19)

Other (a)

(a)  This caption includes, essentially, expenses incurred with banking services and loan issuance and placement, which form an integral part 
of the effective financing cost.

6. INCOME TAX
The Company is subject to Corporate Income Tax (“IRC”) at the normal rate of 21%, which can be increased 
by a municipal surcharge of up to a maximum rate of 1.5% of the taxable income. 

Additionally, the nominal tax rate may vary between 21% and 31.5%, depending on the amount of taxable 
income (TI) determined, which is subject to a state surcharge at the following rates:

State surcharge:  3% on TI if €m 1.5 < TI <= €m 7.5;

    5% on TI if €m 7.5 < TI <= €m 35; and

    9% on TI > €m 35

In accordance with current legislation, tax returns are subject to review and correction by the tax 
authorities during a period of four years (five years for social security), except where tax losses exist 
or tax benefits have been granted or inspections, claims or appeals are in progress, in which case, 
depending on the circumstances, the period can be extended or suspended. Therefore, the Company’s 
tax returns for the years 2017 through 2020 may still be subject to review and correction.

As at 30 June 2021, the tax proceedings concerning financial years 2011 and 2012 (Note 23) are still 
underway, in respect of which, and as likewise stated in the Tax Inspection Reports for BAE relating 
to financial years 2007 through 2010, the Tax Authority (“TA”) concluded as to the inadequacy of the 
legal and tax framework applied to the securitization of future receivables in the amount of Euros 400 
000 000, carried out on 19 December 2007 and transferred to BCR as part of the assets and liabilities 
allocated to the Brisa Concession (Note 1), considering that said securitization cannot be framed under 
Decree-Law 453/99, of 5 November, as amended by Decree-Law 82/02, of 5 April, and, consequently, the 
tax regime provided for in Decree-Law 219/2001, of 4 August, both altered by Decree-Law 303/2003, 
of 5 December, is not applicable.
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In view of the above, the Tax Authority considers that:
  The income corresponding to the services giving rise to the future receivables must be recognized, 

in tax and accounting terms, in the tax periods in which they were generated; 
  When determining the taxable income of the Company relating to financial years 2012 and 2011 

(already inspected) an amount of Euros 80 000 000 in each financial year was wrongly deducted 
from taxable income.

The Board of Directors, based on the opinion of its legal, accounting and tax experts and consultants, 
deems that the treatment afforded to said operation is adequately framed from the legal perspective, 
and, consequently, from the accounting and tax perspectives. As a result, the Board of Directors deems 
that the corrections proposed and contained in the Tax Inspection Reports relating to tax periods 2012 
and 2011 are totally unfounded, for which reason BCR, through BAE as dominant company within the 
scope of RETGS in the financial year the tax proceedings relate to, will use all legal means at its disposal 
as taxpayer to assert the treatment afforded to this operation from all perspectives. In view of the 
above, as at 30 June 2021, no provision was recorded for this purpose.

The Board of Directors believes that any possible corrections resulting from revisions / inspections of the 
remaining tax returns will not have a significant impact on the financial statements as at 30 June 2021.

Income tax recognized in the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

The reconciliation between profit before tax and income tax for the half years ended on 30 June 2021 
and 2020 is as follows:

(a)  For the purpose of determining the expected tax, the tax rate used as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 was 22.25% and 22.5%, respectively, with 
the municipal surcharge (“Derrama”) of 1.25% and 1.5%, respectively, having been considered.

30.06.202030.06.2021

(4 001 047)

  19 471 308

(4 339 389)

  26 986 485

  15 470 261  22 647 096

Deferred tax (Note 12)

Current tax

30.06.202030.06.2021

  11 239 250

  49 952 223

-

   3 020

(757 813)

  15 470 261

(13 441)

    64

      5 589 005

      (4 001 047)

  16 610 047

  74 651 898

(2 395)

   2 251

-

  22 647 096

   100 132

    389

  7 203 639

  (4 339 389)

  3 411 223

-

  3 072 399

    23

Expected tax (a)

Tax benefits

Autonomous taxation

Taxes on prior years’ results

Income tax

Profit before tax

Impairment losses 

Other

State surcharge

(Recognition) / Reversal of deferred tax (Note 12)

Provisions

Fines and penalties

30.97%30.34%Effective tax rate
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As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, current income tax liabilities were as follows:

31.12.2020

30.06.2020

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

  59 914 195

  34 481 962

  15 000 000

(142 032)

   2.30 

  78 019 836

  52 004 802

  15 000 000

(218 446)

   3.47 

(50 229 125)

  9 543 038

(50 229 125)

  27 572 265

Tax estimate

Result for the purpose of determining the basic and 
diluted earning per share (net income for the half year)

Average number of shares for the purpose of 
determining the basic and diluted earning per share

Withholding taxes

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Payment on account

Corporate income tax (“IRC”):

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020 were calculated 
based on the following amounts:

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, no diluting effects existed; hence, the basic and diluted earnings per 
share are identical.

8. DIVIDENDS
The General Shareholders’ Meetings held on 24 March 2021 and 23 March 2020 deliberated the payment 
of dividends in the amounts of Euros 124 231 072 and Euros 135 362 456, respectively, in respect of the 
net income for the financial years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. 

At the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 23 March 2020, it was deliberated to distribute free 
reserves in the amount of Euros 137 544.
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9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Changes in tangible fixed assets and in the corresponding accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses in the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

Total

Total

Advances on 
account of 

tangible fixed 
assets

Tools and 
utensils

Tools and 
utensils

Transportation 
Equipment

Transportation 
Equipment

Buildings 
and other 

constructions

Buildings 
and other 

constructions

Tangible fixed  
assets in 
progress

Tangible fixed  
assets in 
progress

Office 
Equipment

Office 
Equipment

Basic 
Equipment

Basic 
Equipment

  145 638 895

  141 344 123

  129 515 580

  128 319 056

(118 377)

(369 616)

(100 805)

(346 427)

-

-

  130 535 148

  128 920 204

  1 182 497

   482 508

  1 550 501

  1 431 228

(430 127)

(490 510)

(430 127)

(483 653)

  146 272 887

  140 966 505

  15 737 739

  12 046 301

   877 183

-

-

-

(178 833)

-

-

-

-

-

   698 349

   698 349

    129

    129

    129

    129

-

-

-

-

-

-

    129

    129

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

    129

    129

-

-

  1 406 011

  1 572 742

   964 905

  1 008 399

(117 120)

(194 330)

(99 548)

(171 140)

-

-

   982 503

   966 419

   31 490

   31 490

   31 490

   31 490

-

-

-

-

-

-

   31 490

   31 490

   124 303

   52 324

   117 146

   129 160

-

-

-

-

  1 413 194

  1 430 736

   430 690

   464 317

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

   31 490

   31 490

-

-

  6 387 257

  5 026 909

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1 368 017)

(707 766)

-

-

   896 424

   173 777

-

-

-

-

-

-

  5 915 664

  4 492 920

  5 915 664

  4 492 920

   303 169

   300 575

   297 932

   293 407

(1 257)

-

(1 257)

-

-

-

   298 915

   295 500

  136 633 656

  134 412 278

  128 221 123

  126 985 631

-

(175 286)

-

(175 287)

  1 546 851

   707 766

  129 222 111

  127 626 666

-

-

   2 240

   2 093

-

-

-

-

   301 912

   300 575

   2 997

   5 075

   161 770

   256 407

  1 431 115

  1 299 975

(430 127)

(490 510)

(430 127)

(483 653)

  137 912 149

  134 710 655

  8 690 038

  7 083 989

Gross assets:

Gross assets:

Accumulated depreciation  
and impairment losses:

Accumulated depreciation  
and impairment losses:

Additions

Additions

Increase

Increase

Write-offs

Write-offs

Write-offs

Write-offs

Closing balance

Closing balance

Carrying value

Carrying value

Opening balance

Opening balance

Opening balance

Opening balance

Disposals

Disposals

Decrease

Decrease

Transfers

Transfers

Closing balance

Closing balance

30.06.2021

30.06.2020
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10. ASSETS HELD UNDER RIGHT OF USE
Changes in assets held under right of use and in the corresponding accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses in the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Changes in intangible assets and in the corresponding accumulated amortization and impairment 
losses in the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

Transportation 
equipment

Total

Total

Intangible assets 
in progress

Buildings and other 
constructions

Rights

Transportation 
equipment

Licenses and 
software

   96 822

 4 751 532 757

   21 115

 2 661 349 019

   96 822

-

 4 757 695 493

   35 060

 2 711 700 742

   61 762

 2 045 994 751

-

  5 646 769

   515 967

   13 945

  50 351 723

   67 177

  45 285 236

   30 267

-

   100 293

(82 948)

  49 417 929

   47 806

-

   52 487

  49 417 929

   33 116

  3 699 674

   515 967

   17 539

-

 4 705 665 114

-

 2 660 913 748

   33 116

   82 948

 4 707 675 772

   8 279

 2 711 228 010

   24 837

 1 996 447 762

   33 116

  1 927 710

-

   8 279

  50 314 262

   67 177

   582 407

   30 267

   435 271

   67 177

-

   601 792

   39 527

   472 732

   27 650

   129 060

-

   19 385

-

   9 260

   37 461

Gross assets:

Gross assets:

Additions

Additions

Capitalized financing costs

Increase

Increase

Opening balance

Opening balance

Opening balance

Opening balance

Closing balance

Transfers

Closing balance

Closing balance

Closing balance

Carrying value

Carrying value

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

30.06.2020

Accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses:

Accumulated amortization and 
impairment losses:
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Total
Intangible assets 

in progressRights
Licenses and 

software

 4 735 047 890

 2 569 424 724

(121 767)

 4 745 521 261

 2 615 325 203

 2 130 196 058

  9 877 295

   717 843

  45 900 479

  35 269 378

-

-

  40 796 385

-

  40 796 385

  4 809 164

   717 843

-

 4 699 310 733

 2 569 046 468

(121 767)

 4 704 210 372

 2 614 923 800

 2 089 286 572

  5 021 406

-

  45 877 332

   467 779

   378 256

-

   514 504

   401 403

   113 101

   46 725

-

   23 147

Gross assets:

Additions

Capitalized financing costs

Increase

Opening balance

Opening balance

Write-offs

Closing balance

Closing balance

Carrying value

30.06.2020

Accumulated amortization and 
impairment losses:

The gross value of intangible assets as at 30 June 2021 includes, essentially:

(i) The right to operate the Brisa Concession, obtained as consideration for motorway and related 
infrastructure construction services in the amount of Euros 4 259 947 746, of which Euros 247 021 506 
relate to the capitalization of financing costs;

(ii) Payment to the State (Grantor) as consideration for the right to collect tolls on the CREL motorway 
as from 1 January 2003, under the terms of Decree-Law 314 A/2002, of 26 December – Euros 236 318 343;

(iii) Amount deriving from the General Agreement entered with the State and Estradas de Portugal, S.A. 
and corresponding amendments to the Concession Bases (Decree-Law 247-C/2008, of 30 December) 
– Euros 158 100 000 (Note 20);

(iv) Charges assumed on the renegotiation of the concession contract in 1991, resulting in the extension 
of the concession period initially established – Euros 101 749 989.

The Company’s traffic estimates were revised to reflect the effects of the COVID 19 pandemic.
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12. DEFERRED TAXES
Deferred tax assets as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, by originating timing difference, were 
as follows:

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, were as follows:

Within the scope of the contractual obligations assumed by BCR, the balance of bank deposits as at 
30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 includes the following reserve accounts:

Although the activities the Company may pursue are restricted pursuant to its bylaws and the concession 
contract, they include entering new financing transactions and realizing capital expenditure. As such and 
considering that the above-mentioned reserve accounts may be used for such purposes, the Company 
considers the total balances of these reserve accounts as cash and cash equivalents.

Changes in deferred tax assets in the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

31.12.2020

30.06.2020

31.12.2020

31.12.2020

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

   157 010

  79 453 380

  74 980 677

  149 358 884

  78 500 000

  87 934 070

  79 835 591

(14 488)

  9 434 070

  78 911 603

  4 001 047

   87 983

  83 803 068

  79 835 591

  82 963 611

  68 000 000

  73 733 206

  84 116 252

(10 298)

  5 733 206

  84 116 252

  4 339 389

   225 201

  4 015 535

(70 121)

   225 201

  4 349 687

(58 728)

Derivative financial instruments

Effect on results:

Effect on shareholders’ equity:

Provisions not considered for tax purposes 

Change in provisions for infrastructure replacement

(Appreciation) / Devaluation of financial instruments (Note 16)

(Appreciation) / Devaluation of financial instruments

Reserve account for investment purposes

Closing balance

Subtotal (Note 6)

Provisions for infrastructure replacement

Opening balance

Bank deposits

Debt service reserve account
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
As at 30 June 2021 and 30 December 2020, this caption had the following breakdown:

Accounts receivable from third parties result from the operational activity and are net of accumulated 
impairment losses. These are estimated based on the information available and past experience.

For the periods presented, the current balances of Trade and Other receivables do not differ significantly 
from their fair value. 

Given the Company’s operations, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

15. SHARE CAPITAL COMPOSITION
The Company’s share capital as at 30 June 2021 is made up of 15 000 000 fully subscribed and paid 
up shares with a nominal value of Euros five each.

Brisa – Concessão Rodoviária, SGPS, S.A. (“BCR, SGPS”) holds 15 000 000 shares, representing 100% 
of the share capital.

The ultimate parent of the Company’s capital is Wallace C.V.

31.12.202030.06.2021

  27 021 328

   123 763

  34 403 326

(24 419 485)

  1 540 537

  3 596 340

  33 068 195

   235 862

  43 598 713

(24 329 525)

  5 534 445

  3 444 336

  2 103 846

   17 512

  24 377 980

   41 505

  55 043 691

  3 779 120

  1 300 541

   15 334

  24 288 020

   41 505

  64 191 201

  3 737 037

Tolls (a)

Group companies and related parties (Note 24)

Other

Other

Doubtful debts

Other doubtful debts

Group companies and related parties (Note 24)

Personnel

Trade receivables:

Other receivables:

Accumulated impairment losses (Note 18)

(a)  As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, this balance includes the amounts of Euros 4 811 499 and Euros 3 871 933, respectively, receivable 
from the entities in Spain, through Via Verde Portugal, Gestão de Sistemas Electrónicos de Cobrança, S.A. (“Via Verde”), arising from the 
use of the Brisa Concession by clients of those entities, under an interoperability agreement of the tolling systems in the Iberian space.
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16. LEGAL AND OTHER RESERVES
Legal reserve
Commercial legislation establishes that at least 5% of the annual net income must be appropriated to 
a legal reserve until the reserve equals at least 20% of the share capital. 

This reserve is not available for distribution except in the event of liquidation but can be used to absorb 
losses once the other reserves have been exhausted, or to increase capital.

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the legal reserve set up totalled Euros 15 000 000, in both 
cases. 

Other reserves
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, this caption had the following breakdown:

17. LOANS OBTAINED
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the loans obtained were as follows:

31.12.2020

 Non-current  Non-current  Current  Current 

30.06.2021

31.12.202030.06.2021

   746 482

 1 096 738 206  976 524 696

   719 758

-  200 000 000

(26 724)

  340 432 762

 1 437 170 968

  322 023 102

 1 498 547 798

   746 482

  321 450 377  124 454 992

   847 468

   172 962  104 199 929

   100 986

  36 634 995

  358 258 334

  36 750 734

  265 405 655

Hedging derivative financial instruments (a)

Bank loans

Commercial paper and credit lines

Free reserves 

Bonds

(a)  This caption includes changes in the fair value of hedging derivative financial instruments (Note 22), net of the tax effect (Note 12).
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BONDS  
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the non-convertible bond issuances were as follows:

2012-2032 Issue
The bond issue in the amount of Euros 100 000 000 was carried out by BCR on 12 July 2012. This 
bond issue, with a 19.5-year maturity, bears interest at a fixed rate of 6% in the first five years and at a 
floating rate of 4.5% increased by the annual change in the consumer price index (excluding housing) 
as from the sixth year and up to maturity. Repayment of the principal will be made in one instalment, 
at maturity, on 12 January 2032.

2014-2021 Issue
The bond issue in the amount of Euros 300 000 000 was carried out by BCR on 1 April 2014. This bond 
issue, with a 7-year maturity, bears interest at a fixed rate of 3.875%. Repayment of the principal was 
made in one instalment, at maturity, on 1 April 2021.

2015-2025 Issue
The bond issue in the amount of Euros 300 000 000 was carried out by BCR on 30 April 2015. This bond 
issue, with a 10-year maturity, beared interest at a fixed rate of 1.875%. Repayment of the principal will 
be made in one instalment, at maturity, on 30 April 2025.

2016-2022 Issue
The bond issue in the amount of Euros 120 000 000 was carried out by BCR on 7 June 2016. This bond 
loan has a floating interest rate indexed to the 6-month Euribor. Repayment of the principal will be 
made in one instalment, at maturity, on 7 January 2022.

2016-2023 Issue
The bond issue in the amount of Euros 300 000 000 was carried out by BCR on 22 March 2016. This 
bond issue, with a 7-year maturity, bears interest at a fixed rate of 2%. Repayment of the principal will 
be made in one instalment, at maturity, on 22 March 2023.

2017-2027 issue
The bond issue in the amount of Euros 300 000 000 was carried out by BCR on 10 May 2017. This bond 
issue, with a 10-year maturity, bears interest at a fixed rate of 2.375%. Repayment of the principal will 
be made in one instalment, at maturity, on 10 May 2027.

Current Non-currentCurrent Non-current
Nominal 

issue value
Nominal 

interest rate

30.06.2021 31.12.2020

Issue Maturity

2012

2015

2016

2014

2016

2017

2 333 982

-

1 239 308

124 454 992

-

120 093 577

788 125

4 122 187

-

4 268 332

321 450 377

  308 664 051

13 186

4 382 621

Jan/2032

Apr/2025

Mar/2023

Apr/2021

Jan/2022

May/2027

Floating

1.875%

2.000%

3.875%

Floating

2.375%

100 000 000

300 000 000

300 000 000

300 000 000

120 000 000

300 000 000

95 199 969

282 841 575

299 689 634

976 524 696

-

-

298 793 518

95 028 990

283 552 634

299 479 641

1 096 738 206

-

119 996 354

298 680 587
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As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the bond issues for which it was possible to obtain a market 
valuation were as follows:

The above-mentioned bond issues are part of a Euro Medium Term Note Programme, which has a 
maximum global amount of Euros 3 000 000 000.

BANK LOANS
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the bank loans had the following breakdown:

Within the scope of the Brisa Group reorganization process, it was negotiated with the European 
Investment Bank (“EIB”) for loans originally contracted by BAE with the EIB to be transferred to BCR. 
The amount of debt transferred on 22 December 2010 totalled Euros 779 708 171. It was agreed with the 
EIB, at the time of the transfer, to consolidate the 16 existing financing contracts into a single financing 
contract, subject to a floating interest rate indexed to the 6-month Euribor and with a substantial 
extension of the average maturity (this new loan to BCR is repaid in constant half-yearly instalments 
from June 2011 through December 2030).

Additionally, the Company entered derivative financial instruments associated with this loan, which are 
classified as hedging instruments (Note 22).

Nominal 
issue value

Nominal 
amount 

contracted

Nominal 
amount 

contracted

Nominal 
interest rate

Carrying 
value

   Market 
value (a)

30.06.2021

30.06.2021 31.12.2020

Carrying 
value

 Market 
value (a)

31.12.2020

Issue
Stock 

Exchange Maturity

2014

2012

2016

2015

2016

2017

LuxSE

LuxSE

LuxSE

LuxSE

Euronext

LuxSE

300 000 000

100 000 000

300 000 000

300 000 000

120 000 000

300 000 000

-

97 533 951

300 928 942

217 627 528

883 352 160

282 841 575

120 093 577

299 581 643

308 664 051

99 151 177

303 747 973

219 160 717

1 199 027 866

283 552 634

120 009 540

303 063 208

Apr/21

Jan/32

Mar/23

Apr/25

Jan/22

May/27

3.875%

Floating

2.000%

1.875%

Floating

2.375%

-

(b)

311 331 000

970 923 000

322 323 000

(b)

337 269 000

302 142 000

(b)

313 350 000

1 278 417 000

323 802 000

(b)

339 123 000

(a)  Source: Bloomberg (b) Market information not available

Amount outstanding Amount outstanding Repayments

Current Current MaturityNon-current Non-current Periodicity
Interest 

rate

370 361 381   389 854 085   36 634 995 Floating  340 432 762  36 750 734   322 023 102 Dec-30 Half-Year
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As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the bank loans had the following repayment schedule:

31.12.202030.06.2021

  36 634 995

  37 098 785

  37 578 402

  377 067 757

  36 861 278

  37 332 209

  191 562 088

  36 750 734

  37 192 819

  37 678 542

  358 773 836

  37 134 786

  37 436 321

  172 580 634

1 to 2 years

3 to 4 years

More than 5 years

2 to 3 years

4 to 5 years

Up to 1 year

COMMERCIAL PAPER AND CREDIT LINES 
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the remaining loans obtained were as follows:

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, BCR had committed credit lines and programmes for issuance 
of committed commercial paper subscription negotiated with the banking system in a total maximum 
amount of Euros 450 000 000 and Euros 400 000 000, respectively, of which the amount of Euros 200 
000 000 was placed as at 30 June 2021 and none was placed as at 31 December 2020.

In addition, during the first half of 2021, BCR contracted programmes for commercial paper issues with 
institutional investors, without guaranteed subscription, in a total amount of Euros 300 000 000.   As 
at 30 June 2021, Euros 105 000 000 were issued under these programmes. 

Non-currentNon-current CurrentCurrent

31.12.202030.06.2021

-  200 000 000    172 962  104 199 929Commercial paper and short-term credit lines
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18. ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 
Changes in accumulated impairment losses in the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, were 
as follows:

19. PROVISIONS 
Changes in the provisions in the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

Opening 
balance

Use

Use

Opening 
balance

Opening 
balance

Opening 
balance

Use

Financial 
update 

(Note 5)

Financial 
update 

(Note 5)

Use

Increase

Reversal 
(Note 3)

Reversal 
(Note 3)

Increase

Increase

Increase

Decrease 
(Note 3)

Transfers

Transfers

Decrease 
(Note 3)

Closing 
balance

Closing 
balance

Closing 
balance

Closing 
balance

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

30.06.2020

30.06.2020

   516 247

   613 506

(66 215)

(59 738)

(539 992)

(34 907)

  24 329 525

  23 492 784

  24 419 485

1 111 352

1 250 746

253 641 687

237 806 759

297 383

268 532

6 089 082

14 009 440

246 143 870

222 278 041

247 552 605

223 797 319

-

-

16 202 783

  23 273 532

-

-

4 019 963

  6 994 679

12 182 820

16 278 853

12 182 820

16 278 853

-

-

(4 890 045)

(11 834 756)

-

-

(4 624 024)

(9 580 348)

(266 021)

(2 254 408)

(266 021)

(2 254 408)

(92 918)

(152 476)

(1 189 015)

(2 565 736)

-

-

(1 086 815)

(2 307 200)

(9 282)

(106 060)

(102 200)

(258 536)

-

-

3 591 891

3 722 215

-

-

617 103

799 913

2 974 788

2 922 302

2 974 788

2 922 302

-

-

-

-

-

20 114 516

1 891 499

(20 114 516)

(1 891 499)

(20 114 516)

(1 891 499)

1 018 434

1 098 270

267 357 301

250 402 014

297 383

268 532

25 129 825

11 807 983

240 911 659

237 227 229

242 227 476

238 594 031

  22 973 923

Impairment losses: 

Provisions: 

Provisions: 

Current:

Current:

Pending legal proceedings

Pending legal proceedings

Other risks and charges

Other risks and charges

Non-current:

Non-current:

Infrastructure replacement

Infrastructure replacement

Infrastructure replacement

Infrastructure replacement

Impairment losses: 

Accounts receivable (Note 14)

Accounts receivable
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Provisions for pending legal proceedings are intended to cover liabilities as estimated by the Board of 
Directors based on information obtained from the Company’s lawyers, for road accident claims, losses 
caused by motorway construction and labour claims. As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, total 
claims amounted to Euros 8 049 660 and Euros 8 671 344, respectively. Provisions set up correspond 
to the Board of Directors’ best estimate of the amount of such liabilities.

Provisions for infrastructure replacement relate to the obligations to replace the worn layer of flexible road 
surfaces, slopes, engineering works and road signage and is recognized, at its present value, throughout 
the period up to the planned date of the intervention. When calculating the value of the interventions, 
the Company considers the traffic evolution estimates, as well as the evolution of construction prices 
and the physical conditions surrounding the infrastructure. Provisions are subject to a financial update 
at each reporting date, calculated at the Company’s average financing cost rate and recorded as 
a financing expense. The reversals recorded relate, essentially, to the reassessment of the estimates 
of the costs to be incurred and changes in the planned schedule of interventions on the infrastructure.

20. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, this caption had the following breakdown:

31.12.202030.06.2021

  22 011 149

   662 266

  28 749 372

  6 075 957

-

21 225 037

438 072

  23 248 074

1 089 965

   495 000

Financial contributions (b)

Advance income of service areas

Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 22)

Compensation for operating losses (a)

(a)  This caption includes compensation in the amount of Euros 73 669 709 obtained from the State for the non-collection of tolls of some 
motorway sub-stretches located in the metropolitan areas of Lisbon and Oporto, net of the amount of Euros 50 872 447 recognized as 
income by BCR and BAE (up to the transfer of the Brisa Concession to BCR) and net of the amount of Euros 1 572 225 (Note 21) classified 
under Other current liabilities. This amount is to be recognized on a straight-line basis until the end of the Concession. In the half year ended 
on 30 June 2021, BCR recognized in income under the caption “Other operating income and gains” the amount of Euros 786 112 (Note 3).

(b)  This caption corresponds to the difference between the amount received from the State, under the Global Agreement established with 
BCR (Note 11) and the balances pending settlement and recognized in the financial statements as at the date of said agreement.
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21. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, this caption had the following breakdown:

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The Company has entered into derivative financial instruments to minimize the risk of exposure to 
changes in interest rates.

Such instruments are entered into considering the risks affecting assets and liabilities, after verifying 
which market instruments available are the most adequate to hedge such risks.

Such operations, which are subject to the CFO’s and/or the Board of Directors’ prior approval, are 
continuously monitored based on various indicators related to these instruments, namely the evolution 
of their market value and the sensitivity of their projected cash flows and market values to changes in 
the key variables that affect the structures, in order to assess their financial effects.

These derivative financial instruments are recorded in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9, being 
measured at their fair value considering valuations made by financial institutions based on mathematical 
models, such as option pricing models and discounted cash flow models for unlisted instruments (over-
the-counter instruments). These models are based, essentially, on market information.

The derivative financial instruments used by the Company comprise interest rate swaps.

31.12.202030.06.2021

   20 387

   491 645

  13 257 253

  1 572 225

   122 024

-

   24 450

   836 601

  2 379 936

  9 995 879

   222 932

   807 711

  10 040 716

   63 733

   497 920

  25 729 457

  1 572 225

   340 447

  4 041 577

   45 657

   857 850

  6 989 631

  17 772 586

   19 483

  1 375 829

  17 881 976

Personal income tax:

Group companies and related parties (Note 24)

Advance income of service areas

Value added tax

Other

Other

Contributions to Social Security

Withholding taxes

Remuneration payable

Compensation for operating losses (Note 20)

State and other public entities:

Accrued expenses:

Deferred income:
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Such instruments are classified as hedging instruments or instruments held for trading, in accordance 
with the provisions of IFRS 9.

Hedge accounting is applied to derivative financial instruments that are effective in offsetting the 
changes in the fair value or cash flows of the underlying assets / liabilities. The effectiveness of these 
operations is checked on a quarterly basis.

Cash flow hedging instruments are derivative financial instruments that hedge interest rate risk. The 
effective component of the changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges is recognized in the shareholders’ 
equity caption “Other reserves”, while the non-effective component is immediately reflected in the 
income statement.

Cash flow hedges
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company had the following interest rate derivative 
financial instruments in place:

In half year ended 30 June 2021 and year ended 31 December 2020, the Company recorded changes 
in these derivative financial instruments in its shareholders’ equity in the amounts of Euros 186 438 
and Euros 407 995, respectively (Note 16).

The referred derivative financial instruments were initially entered into by BAE. Within the scope of the 
transfer of the Brisa Concession (Note 1), the contractual position in such instruments was transferred 
to the Company on 22 December 2010, as an integral part of the assets and liabilities forming part of 
the contribution in kind for the realization of the share capital increase carried out on the same date.

23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company had obligations related to the following bank 
guarantees provided to third parties:

Fair value 
(Note 20)Maturity Underlying 

amount
Fair value 
(Note 20)

Underlying 
amountCounterpartyType of 

operation

31.12.202030.06.2021

(662 266)(438 072) 10 416 667Caixa-BIFixed/floating int. 
rate swap

8 333 33315 June 2023

31.12.202030.06.2021

1 534 032 

63 246 159 

  64 780 191

1 521 533 

63 246 159 

  64 767 692

Portuguese State (Base XX of the Concession Contract)

Other guarantees granted to third parties

Guarantees provided:
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Within the scope of the contractual financing structure (ring-fencing) of the Company, several guarantees 
were granted in favour of BCR’s senior creditors, which include, among others, a pledge of the shares held 
by BCR SGPS in the share capital of BCR, and well as a pledge of the balances of BCR’s bank accounts.

Additionally, as a result of the tax execution proceedings brought against BAE relating to financial 
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 (Note 6), BCR granted guarantees to the tax authorities on 
22 September 2016 and 29 December 2015, respectively, in the amounts Euros 30 947 514 and Euros 
11 941 451, respectively, in order to suspend such proceedings.

Following Ordinance 314-B/2010, of 14 June, the Road Authority (formerly SIEV, currently IMT) charged 
the Company “access fees to the activity of other authorized entities”, “electronic transaction fees” and 
an “annual fee for the exercising of the activity of other entities” in the approximate overall amount of 
Euros 7 149 423. The Company deemed these fees to be illegal and has legally challenged such claims.  
The Board of Directors, based on the legal opinion of the Company’s lawyers, deems it highly unlikely 
that any outflow of resources concerning these claims will occur, and has therefore not set up any 
provision for this purpose.

24. RELATED PARTIES
As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, balances with group companies and other related parties 
were as follows:

Other receivables  
(Note 14)

Trade 
payables

Investment 
payables

Trade receivables 
(Note 14)

31.12.202031.12.2020 31.12.202031.12.2020 30.06.202130.06.2021 30.06.202130.06.2021

-

8 995

45 480

-

-

-

-

2 027 938

2 103 846

-

-

284

-

-

21 149

-

-

-

-

1 851 171

-

-

-

4 606 399

2 755 228

-

-

-

-

-

209 870

32

48 886

-

1 150 388

-

-

8 100

35 185 802

323 732

134 347

-

-

4 531 422

28 779 025

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

123 763

17 625

-

-

-

104 541

1 597

-

-

31 157

-

-

-

-

1 268 517

1 300 541

-

-

509

174

-

184

-

-

-

-

832 697

-

-

-

1 332 747

500 050

-

-

-

-

-

187 154

252

-

4 224

330 922

-

-

8 151

12 634 229

35 326

116 466

-

-

2 445 039

9 506 695

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

235 862

235 862

-

-

-

-

-

Holding company:

Related parties:

BGI - Brisa Gestão de 
Infraestruturas, S.A. (“BGI”)

AEBT - Auto-Estradas do 
Baixo Tejo, S.A. (“AEBT”)

Brisal - Auto-Estradas 
do Litoral, S.A. (“Brisal”)

Brisa - Áreas de Serviço, S.A. (“BAS”)

AtoBe - Mobility Technology, 
S.A. (“AtoBe”)

Auto-Estradas do 
Atlântico, S.A. (“AEA”)

ASIRB - Serviços Rodoviários, 
S.A (“ASIRB”)

Sicit - Sociedade de Investimento 
e Consultoria em Infra-estruturas 
de Transportes, S.A. (“Sicit”)

BAE

Via Verde

Controlauto - Controlo Técnico 
Automóvel, S.A. (“Controlauto”)

Via Verde Serviços, S.A. (“VVS”)

Grupo José de Mello

Brisa O&M, S.A. (“BOM”)
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Other current 
liabilities

Other 
operating income

Other 
payables

Services rendered 
(Note 3)

Other current 
assets

External 
supplies (Note 4)

31.12.2020

31.12.2020

31.12.2020

31.12.2020

31.12.2020

31.12.2020

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

775 558

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

   816 035

40 423

-

-

-

-

10 842 248

54

46 452 212

1 234 477

205

-

-

-

62 201 435

3 535 966

119 393

-

-

-

16 934

-

-

-

-

-

-

9

-

9

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

45 646

48 276

-

1 707

10 327 035

-

41 995

614

10 186 701

2 096

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

122 024

111 976

-

-

-

10 048

-

-

-

55

-

-

-

-

55

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

622

-

-

-

-

-

11 030 378

622

46 377 391

801 887

299

-

-

-

62 134 622

3 858 182

59 617

-

-

-

6 868

-

-

-

-

-

9

-

-

9

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

38 958

-

-

2 253

1 421 093

-

44 984

446

1 334 452

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

340 447

228 317

102 082

-

-

10 048

-

-

-

27 432

-

-

-

-

27 432

-

-

-

-

-

-

Holding company:

Holding company:

Related parties:

Related parties:

BGI - Brisa Gestão de 
Infraestruturas, S.A. (“BGI”)

AEBT - Auto-Estradas do 
Baixo Tejo, S.A. (“AEBT”)

Brisal - Auto-Estradas 
do Litoral, S.A. (“Brisal”)

Brisa - Áreas de Serviço, S.A. (“BAS”)

AtoBe - Mobility Technology, 
S.A. (“AtoBe”)

Auto-Estradas do 
Atlântico, S.A. (“AEA”)

ASIRB - Serviços Rodoviários, 
S.A (“ASIRB”)

Sicit - Sociedade de Investimento 
e Consultoria em Infra-estruturas 
de Transportes, S.A. (“Sicit”)

BAE

BAE

Via Verde

Controlauto - Controlo Técnico 
Automóvel, S.A. (“Controlauto”)

Via Verde Serviços, S.A. (“VVS”)

Grupo José de Mello

Brisa O&M, S.A. (“BOM”)

BOM

BGI

Controlauto

AEDL

AtoBe

ASIRB

Via Verde

VVS

Sicit

BAS

Via Verde Carsharing, S.A.

Grupo José de Mello

Additionally, the main transactions carried out with group companies and other related parties during 
the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, were as follows:
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Tangible and intangible 
fixed assets 

Other operating 
expenses

Provision for infrastructure 
replacement

31.12.202031.12.2020 31.12.2020 30.06.202130.06.2021 30.06.2021

-

-

1 232 880

-

-

-

-

1 232 880

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

63

-

-

-

63

-

-

-

-

-

-

10 048

-

1 604 553

-

-

185 037

-

1 789 590

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1 091 368

-

-

-

-

1 091 368

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

10 048

-

862 925

-

-

953 536

-

1 816 461

-

-

-

-

-

-

Holding company:

Related parties:

BAE

BOM

BGI

Controlauto

AEDL

AtoBe

ASIRB

Via Verde

VVS

Sicit

BAS

Via Verde Carsharing, S.A.

Grupo José de Mello

In the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, the remunerations of the members of the Company’s 
corporate bodies were as follows:

In the half years ended on 30 June 2021 and 2020, the remunerations of key management personnel 
were as follows:

30.06.2020

30.06.2020

30.06.2021

30.06.2021

   48 000

   186 355

   56 000

   161 015

   104 000

   347 370

   27 600

-

83 600

-

56 000

-

Fixed remuneration

Fixed remuneration

Supervisory Board

Variable remuneration

Non-executive directors:

Key management personnel
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25. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements for the half year ended on 30 June 2021 were approved by the Board of 
Directors on 27 September 2021.

26. TRANSLATION NOTE
The document is a free translation of the original document issued in the Portuguese language. In the 
event of discrepancies or misinterpretations the original version shall prevail.

S. Domingos de Rana, 27 September 2021

The Certified Accountant no. 62018

______________________________________
João Miguel Rodrigues

António de Magalhães Pires de Lima

Manuel Rebelo Teixeira Melo Ramos

Daniel Alexandre Miguel Amaral

Eduardo António da Costa Ramos

Marta Brugnini de Sousa Uva Martinha

António José Lopes Nunes de Sousa

Luís Eduardo Brito Freixial de Goes

Fernando Aboudib Camargo

António José Louçã Pargana

Miguel José Pereira Athayde Marques

Maria de Fátima Henriques da Silva Barros Bertoldi

José Maria Campos da Silva André

The Board of Directors
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Abbreviation
€k
€m
Accident Index
Accident Rate
ADT

AT
CAPEX
CCC
CO2

EBIT
EBITDA
Fatal Accident Rate
Fatality Rate
frc
GHG
GJ 
IFRIC 12
IFRS
IMT
ISO
Km
m3

Market-Based

Minor Injury Accident Rate
Minor Injury Rate
OCC
RETGS
SDG
Severe Injury Accident Rate
Severe Injury Rate
Severity Index
tCO2eq
Ton
v.km

Meaning
Thousand euros
Million euros
Accidents involving victims / km travelled
Total number of accidents / km travelled
Average Daily Traffic – Average daily number of vehicles 
recorded in the network, per year
Portuguese Tax Authority
Capital Expenditure
Commercial Companies Code
Carbon Dioxide
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortisation
Number of accidents involving fatalities / km travelled
Number of fatalities / km travelled
Family Responsible Company
Greenhouse Gases
Gigajoules
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
International Financial Reporting Standards
Institute for Mobility and Transport
International Organisation for Standardisation
Kilometres
Cubic metres
Emission factor associated with the renewable/non-renewable 
mix of the energy supplier from which BCR buys electricity: 
198.9 g/kWh
(Source: Electricity supplier (EDP Comercial Empresas) - Energy source in 2020 
(annual value published by the supplier (g CO2/kWh). CO2/CO2e conversion using the 
Portuguese average electricity generation ratio).

Number of accidents involving minor injuries / km travelled
Number of slightly injured persons / km travelled
Operational Coordination Centre
Special Group Taxation Regime
Sustainable Development Goals
Number of accidents involving severe injuries / km travelled
Number of severely injured persons / km travelled
Number of fatalities / 100 Accidents involving victims
Tonne of CO2 equivalent
Tonne
Vehicles per kilometre (circulation)


